

BiPAC 7404V(G)OX BiPAC 7404V(G)PX

VoIP/(802.11g) ADSL2+ (VPN) Firewall Router

User Manual

Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction	1
Introduction to your Router	1
Features	1
Chapter 2: Installing the Router	5
Important note for using this router	5
Package Contents	5
The Front LEDs.	6
The Rear Ports	7
Cabling	8
Chapter 3: Basic Installation	9
Connecting Your Router	10
Network Configuration	11
Factory Default Settings	17
Information from your ISP	18
Configuring with your Web Browser	19
Chapter 4: Configuration	20
Status	21
ADSL Status	21

ARP Table	22
DHCP Table	22
Routing Table	24
NAT Sessions	25
UPnP Portmap	25
PPTP Status	26
IPSec Status	27
L2TP Status	27
Email Status	28
VoIP Status	28
VoIP Call Log	28
Event Log	29

Error Log	
Diagnostic	
Quick Start	31
Configuration	35
LAN - Local Area Network	
Bridge Interface	
Ethernet	
IP Alias	
Ethernet Client Filter	
Wireless	40
Wireless Security	42
Wireless Client / MAC Address Filter	45
WPS	46
Port Setting	47
DHCP Server	48
WAN - Wide Area Network	49
WAN Interface	49
WAN Profile	51
ADSL Mode	61
System	62
Time Zone	62
Remote Access	63
Firmware Upgrade	63
Backup / Restore	64
Restart Router	65
User Management	66
Firewall and Access Control	68
General Settings	69
Packet Filter	70
Intrusion Detection	78
URL Filter	81
IM / P2P Blocking	84

Firewall Log	
VPN - Virtual Private Networks (Only available for BiPAC 7404	V(G)OX) 86
PPTP (Point-to-Point Tunneling Protocol)	
IPSec (IP Security Protocol)	
L2TP (Layer Two Tunneling Protocol)	
VoIP - Voice over Internet Protocol	116
SIP Device Parameters	117
SIP Accounts	
Phone Port	
PSTN Dial Plan (Router with LINE port only)	
VoIP Dial Plan	
Call Feature	
Speed Dial	
Ring & Tone	
QoS - Quality of Service	
Prioritization	
Outbound IP Throttling (LAN to WAN)	
Inbound IP Throttling (WAN to LAN)	
Virtual Server (known as Port Forwarding)	
Add Virtual Server	
Edit DMZ Host	
Edit One-to-One NAT (Network Address Translation)	
Time Schedule	
Advanced	
Static Route	
Dynamic DNS	
Check Email	
Device Management	
IGMP	
VLAN Bridge	
Logout	
Chapter 5: Troubleshooting	160

Appendix:	Product	Support &	Contact	162
-----------	---------	-----------	---------	-----

Chapter 1: Introduction

Introduction to your Router

Welcome to the VoIP/ (802.11g) ADSL2+(VPN) Firewall Router. The router is an "all-in-one" ADSL router, combining an ADSL modem, ADSL router and Ethernet network switch functionalities, providing everything you need to get the machines on your network connected to the Internet over your ADSL broadband connection. With features such as an ADSL Quick-Start wizard and DHCP Server, you can be online in no time at all and with a minimum of fuss and configuration, catering for first-time users to the guru requiring advanced features and control over their Internet connection and network.

Features

Express Internet Access

The router complies with ADSL worldwide standards. It supports downstream rate up to 12/24 Mbps with ADSL2/2+, 8Mbps with ADSL. Users enjoy not only high-speed ADSL services but also broadband multimedia applications such as interactive gaming, video streaming and real-time audio much easier and faster than ever. It is compliant with Multi-Mode standard (ANSI T1.413, Issue 2; G.dmt (ITU G.992.1); G.lite (ITU G.992.2); G.hs (ITU G994.1); G.dmt.bis (ITU G.992.3); G.dmt.bis.plus (ITU G.992.5)).



0

a

802.11g Wireless AP with WPA Support (Wireless Router only)

With integrated 802.11g Wireless Access Point in the router, the device offers a quick and easy access among wired network, wireless network and broadband connection (ADSL) with single device simplicity, and as a result, mobility to the users. In addition to 54 Mbps 802.11g data rate, it also interoperates backward with existing 802.11b equipment. The Wireless Protected Access (WPA-PSK and WPA2-PSK) and Wireless Encryption Protocol (WEP) supported features enhance the security level of data protection and access control via Wireless LAN.

Fast Ethernet Switch

A 4-port 10/100Mbps fast Ethernet switch is built in with automatic switching between MDI and MDI-X for 10Base-T and 100Base-TX ports. An Ethernet straight or crossover cable can be used directly for auto detection.

Multi-Protocol to Establish a Connection

It supports PPPoA (RFC 2364 - PPP over ATM Adaptation Layer 5), RFC 1483 encapsulation overATM (bridged or routed), PPP over Ethernet (RFC 2516), and IPoA (RFC1577) to establish a connection with the ISP. The product also supports VC-based and LLC-based multiplexing.

Quick Installation Wizard

0

It supports a WEB GUI page to install this device quickly. With this wizard, end users can enter the information easily which they get from their ISP, then surf the Internet immediately.

Universal Plug and Play (UPnP) and UPnP NAT Traversal

This protocol is used to enable simple and robust connectivity among stand-alone devices and PCs from many different vendors. It makes network simple and affordable for users. UPnP architecture leverages TCP/IP and the Web to enable seamless proximity networking in addition to control and data transfer among networked devices. With this feature enabled, users can now connect to Net meeting or MSN Messenger seamlessly.

Network Address Translation (NAT)

Allows multi-users to access outside resources such as the Internet simultaneously with one IP address/one Internet access account. Many application layer gateway (ALG) are supported such as web browser, ICQ, FTP, Telnet, E-mail, News, Net2phone, Ping, NetMeeting, IP phone and others.

SOHO Firewall Security with DoS and SPI

Along with the built-in NAT natural firewall feature, the router also provides advanced hacker pattern-filtering protection. It can automatically detect and block Denial of Service (DoS) attacks. The router is built with Stateful Packet Inspection (SPI) to determine if a data packet is allowed through the firewall to the private LAN.

Domain Name System (DNS) Relay

It provides an easy way to map the domain name (a friendly name for users such as www.yahoo. com) and IP address. When a local machine sets its DNS server with this router's IP address, every DNS conversion request packet from the PC to this router will be forwarded to the real DNS in the outside network.

Dynamic Domain Name System (DDNS)

The Dynamic DNS service allows you to alias a dynamic IP address to a static hostname. This dynamic IP address is the WAN IP address. For example, to use the service, you must first apply for an account from a DDNS service like http://www.dyndns.org/. More than 5 DDNS servers are supported.

Quality of Service (QoS)

QoS gives you full control over which types of outgoing data traffic should be given priority by the router, ensuring important data like gaming packets, customer information, or management information move through the router ay lightning speed, even under heavy load. The QoS features are configurable by source IP address, destination IP address, protocol, and port. You can throttle the speed at which different types of outgoing data pass through the router, to ensure P2P users don't saturate upload bandwidth, or office browsing doesn't bring client web serving to a halt. In addition, or alternatively, you can simply change the priority of different types of upload data and let the router sort out the actual speeds.

Virtual Server ("port forwarding")

Users can specify some services to be visible from outside users. The router can detect incoming service requests and forward either a single port or a range of ports to the specific local computer to handle it. For example, a user can assign a PC in the LAN acting as a WEB server inside and expose it to the outside network. Outside users can browse inside web servers directly while it is protected by NAT. A DMZ host setting is also provided to a local computer exposed to the outside network, Internet.

Rich Packet Filtering

Not only filters the packet based on IP address, but also based on Port numbers. It will filter packets from and to the Internet, and also provides a higher level of security control.

Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (DHCP) Client and Server

In the WAN site, the DHCP client can get an IP address from the Internet Service Provider (ISP) automatically. In the LAN site, the DHCP server can allocate a range of client IP addresses and distribute them including IP address, subnet mask as well as DNS IP address to local computers. It provides an easy way to manage the local IP network.

Static and RIP1/2 Routing

It has routing capability and supports easy static routing table or RIP1/2 routing protocol.

Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP)

It is an easy way to remotely manage the router via SNMP.

9

Web based GUI

It supports web based GUI for configuration and management. It is user-friendly and comes with on-line help. It also supports remote management capability for remote users to configure and manage this product.

Firmware Upgradeable

Device can be upgraded to the latest firmware through the WEB based GUI.

Rich Management Interfaces

It supports flexible management interfaces with local console port, LAN port, and WAN port. Users can use terminal applications through the console port to configure and manage the device, or Telnet, WEB GUI, and SNMP through LAN or WAN ports to configure and manage the device.

Virtual Private Network (VPN) (BiPAC 7404V(G)OX only)

It allows user to make a tunnel with a remote site directly to secure the data transmission among the connection. User can use embedded PPTP and L2TP client/server, IKE and IPSec which are supported by this router to make a VPN connection or users can run the PPTP client in PC and the router already provides IPSec and PPTP pass through function to establish a VPN connection if the user likes to run the PPTP client in his local computer.

Chapter 2: Installing the Router

Important note for using this router



Place the router on a stable surface.
Only use the power adapter that comes with the package. Using a different voltage rating power adapter may damage the router.

Package Contents

- 0
- CD-ROM containing the online manual
- RJ-11 ADSL/telephone Cable
- Ethernet (CAT-5) Cable
- Console kit
- Power adapter
- A detachable antenna
- Quick Start Guide

The Front LEDs.



	LED	Meaning
1	Power	Lit when power is ON. Lit red means system failure. Restart the device or contact Billion for support.
2	Ethernet Port 1X — 4X (RJ-45 connector)	Lit when one of LAN ports is connected to an Ethernet device. Lit green when the speed of transmission hits 100Mbps; Lit orange when the speed of transmission hits 10Mbps. Blink when data is being Transmitted / Received.
3	USB	Lit when the router is connected to a USB device. Flash when data is received / transmitted.
4	Wireless	Lit green when a wireless connection is established. Flash when the device is sending/receiving data.
5	Phone 1x-2x (RJ-11 connector)	Lit green when phone is off hook.
6	Line (Router with LINE port only)	Lit when the inbound and outbound calls are transmitted through PSTN.
7	VoIP 1x-2x (RJ-11 connector)	After SIP registration is OK, the LED will lit green whenever phone 1 is off hook but will lit orange for phone 2. <i>Note: Orange light also means when both Phone 1 and 2 are</i>
		registered OK at the same time.
8	DSL	Lit Green when the device is successfully connected to an ADSL DSLAM. ("line sync").
9	Internet	Lit red when WAN port fails to get IP address. Lit green when WAN port gets IP address successfully.

The Rear Ports



NOTE:

Ethernet # 4 can be used as a console port. You need a special console tool which is included in the package to connect with the LAN.

	Port	Meaning
1	Antenna (Wireless Router only)	Connect the detachable antenna to this port.
2	DSL	Connect this port to the ADSL/telephone network with the RJ- 11 cable (telephone) provided.
3	Line (Router with LINE port only)	Connect this port to the telephone jack on the wall with RJ-11 cable.
4	Phone 1X-2X (RJ-11 connector)	Connect this port to an analog phone set with RJ-11 cable.
5	USB	Connect the USB cable to this port.
6	Ethernet 1X — 4X (RJ-45 connector)	Connect a UTP Ethernet cable (Cat-5 or Cat-5e) to one of the LAN ports when connecting to a PC or an office/home network of 10Mbps or 100Mbps. <i>Caution: Port 4 can be either a LAN or Console port at a</i> <i>time but not both.</i>
7	WPS	Push WPS button to trigger Wi-Fi Protected Setup function.
8	RESET	To be sure the device is being turned on press RESET button for: 1-3 seconds: quick reset the device. 6 seconds and above, power off, power on the device: restore to factory default settings. (Cannot login to the router or forgot your Username/Password. Press the button for more than 6 seconds). Caution: After pressing the RESET button for more than 6 seconds, to be sure you power cycle the device again.
9	Power	Connect it with the supplied power adapter.
10	Power Switch	Power ON/OFF switch

Cabling

One of the most common causes of problem is bad cabling or ADSL line(s). Make sure that all connected devices are turned on. On the front panel of your router is a bank of LEDs. Verify that the LAN Link and ADSL line LEDs are lit. If they are not, verify if you are using the proper cables.

Make sure that all devices (e.g. telephones, fax machines, analogue modems) connected to the same telephone line as your router have a line filter connected between them and the wall outlet (unless you are using a Central Splitter or Central Filter installed by a qualified and licensed electrician), and that all line filters are correctly installed in a right way. If line filter is not installed and connected properly, it may cause problem to your ADSL connection or may result in frequent disconnections.

Chapter 3: Basic Installation

The router can be configured through your web browser. A web browser is included as a standard application in the following operating systems: Linux, Mac OS, Windows 98/NT/2000/XP/Me/Vista, etc. The product provides an easy and user-friendly interface for configuration.

Please check your PC network components. The TCP/IP protocol stack and Ethernet network adapter must be installed. If not, please refer to your Windows-related or other operating system manuals.

There are ways to connect the router, either through an external repeater hub or connect directly to your PCs. However, make sure that your PCs have an Ethernet interface installed properly prior to connecting the router device. You ought to configure your PCs to obtain an IP address through a DHCP server or a fixed IP address that must be in the same subnet as the router. The default IP address of the router is 192.168.1.254 and the subnet mask is 255.255.255.0 (i.e. any attached PC must be in the same subnet, and have an IP address in the range of 192.168.1.1 to 192.168.1.253). The best and easiest way is to configure the PC to get an IP address automatically from the router using DHCP. If you encounter any problem accessing the router web interface it is advisable to uninstall your firewall program on your PCs, as they can cause problems accessing the IP address of the router. Users should make their own decisions on what is best to protect their network.

Please follow the following steps to configure your PC network environment.



Any TCP/IP capable workstation can be used to communicate with or through this router. To configure other types of workstations, please consult your manufacturer documentation.

Connecting Your Router

- 1. Connect this router to a **LAN** (Local Area Network) and the ADSL/telephone (**ADSL**) net work.
- 2. Power on the device.
- 3. Make sure the **Power LED** lit steadily and that the **LAN** LED is lit.
- 4. Connect your router to the telephone jack on the wall with RJ-11 cable.
- 5. Connect the USB 2.0 cable.



Network Configuration

Configuring PC in Windows Vista

- 1. Go to Start. Click on Network.
- 2. Then click on Network and Sharing Center at the top bar.

3. When the Network and Sharing Center window pops up, select and click on Manage network connections on the left window column.

4. Select the Local Area Connection, and right click the icon to select Properties.



5. Select Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4) then click Properties.

- In the TCP/IPv4 properties window, select the Obtain an IP address automatically and Obtain DNS Server address automatically radio buttons. Then click OK to exit the setting.
- 7. Click OK again in the Local Area Connection Properties window to apply the new configuration.

American's Linus at	
	13 1 1 - 1 - 0
Intel(R) 82566DM Giga	abit Network Connection
	Configure
This connection uses the follo	owing items:
Client for Microsoft N	letworks
QoS Packet Schedu	uler
File and Printer Shar	ing for Microsoft Networks
Internet Protocol Ver	rsion 6 (TCP/IPv6)
 Internat Protocol Ve Link-Laver Topology 	Discovery Mapper I/O Driver
 Link-Layer Topology Link-Layer Topology 	Discovery Responder
,,.,,,	
Install	Ininetall
	roperties
Description	
	OK Cancel
net Protocol Version 4 (TCF	P/IPv4) Properties
neral Alternate Configuratio	n
ou can get IP settings assigne nis capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings.	d automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator
ou can get IP settings assigne his capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto	d automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically
 ou can get IP settings assignents bis capability. Otherwise, you so the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP address 	d automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator matically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignents capability. Otherwise, you for the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP address IP address: 	ed automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assigned his capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address autor Obtain an IP address autor Use the following IP address IP address: Subnet mask: 	ed automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
ou can get IP settings assigne his capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP addre IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway:	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignents capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address autors use the following IP address IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address 	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator matically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignents capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP address IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server 	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator matically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignents capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP addres IP address; Subnet mask: Default gateway; Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server; 	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignensis capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP address IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server: Preferred DNS server: Alternate DNS server: 	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assigned his capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP addres IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server: Alternate DNS server: 	ad automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 ou can get IP settings assignens capability. Otherwise, you or the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP address IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server: Alternate DNS server: 	d automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrator omatically ess:
 u can get IP settings assigne is capability. Otherwise, you r the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address auto Use the following IP addres IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server: Alternate DNS server: 	ed automatically if your network suppor need to ask your network administrato omatically ess:
 can get IP settings assigned capability. Otherwise, you the appropriate IP settings. Obtain an IP address autors Obtain an IP address autors Use the following IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server address Use the following DNS server: Alternate DNS server: 	d automatically if your network support need to ask your network administrat omatically ess:

52

Configuring PC in Windows XP

- Go to Start > Control Panel (in Classic View). In the Control Panel, double-click on Network Connections
- 2. Double-click Local Area Connection.
- 3. In the Local Area Connection Status window, click Properties.

4. Select Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) and click Properties.

- 5. Select the Obtain an IP address automatically and the Obtain DNS server address automatically radio buttons.
- 6. Click OK to finish the configuration.

Centrol Panel		
Pile Edit View Pavorites Tools H	wb	4
(3 + · · 5) 5+*	ch 🐑 Poklers 💷-	
Address Dr Control Facel		× 53 0
	A h	18.
Control Panel	S 80	-40
D+ Switch to Category Vew	Connections Modem	Nower Options
A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER.	64. 6	620
See Also	The second second	
💁 Windows Update	Falles Language	Caneras
() Pelp and Support	13 Q.	52
	Scheduled Sounds and	Speech
	Taska Audo Devices	
📥 Local Area Connection	Status	<u>?</u> ×
General Support		
Status:	Con	nected
Duration:	00	:19:32
Speed:	100.0) Mbps
Activity	-	
Sent -	— 🜮 📜 — Ве	ceived
Packets:	27	0
	2.	Ū
Properties Disable		
Tropences Disable		
		Close
+ Local Area Connection P	roperties	Close
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar	roper tice wed	
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advan Connect using	roportina seed	
Local Area Connection P General [Authorication] Advan Connect using Mathematication 440	roper flee seed h 10/100 integrated Co	
Local Area Connection P General [Authentication] Advan Connect using Mar ASUSTeK/Broadcom 440	ropin/files iced 24 10/100 Integrated Co Con	Close
Local Area Connection D Connect using Authentication Advan Connect using ASUSTER/Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follows M III Client to Microsoft Net	ropin/files seed bit 10/100 Integrated Co Con rig Jams works	Close
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advan Connect using ASUSTER/Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follows Client for Microsoft Nets S File and Prover Sharing Client for Microsoft Nets S Order State Sharing S Order State Sharing	ropin/100 seed bit 10/100 Integrated Co Con rig Jams works for Microsoft Networks	Close
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advan Connect using ASUSTER/Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follows Clerit to Microsoft Net GoS Packet Schedules GoS Packet Schedules	coperation seed by 10/100 integrated Cor- ing James works for Microsoft Networks	Close
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7./Insadcom 440 The connection uses the follows Clerit for Microsoft Nets GoS Packet Schedule GoS Packet Schedule Theorem Endocessit Lices Instat.	roperfiles seed bit0/100 Integrated Cor ing terms works for Microsoft Networks for Microsoft Networks	
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUSTER/Broadcom 440 The connection uses the follows Client for Microsoft Nets GoS Packet Schedule Original Description Instat	ropin (10) seed by 10/100 Integrated Con ing Jams works for Microsoft Networks for Microsoft Networks	
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7./Insadcom 440 This connection uses the follows Go File and Photo Sharing Go File Go File And Photo Sharing Go File Go File And Photo Sharing Go File Go Fi	ropin (10) seed b 10/100 Integrated Cor- ng Jams: works to Microsoft Networks up entrol Protocol, The of provedue concernance	Aguen
Local Area Connection P Denned Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #K/Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follows Clerit for Microsoft Nee Dennetion Use The School Protocol II Instat Un Dennetion Teaministic Certral Protocol Transmission Certral Protocol Species on extinction and	ropin (10) seed be 10/100 Integrated Con reg James works to Microsoft Networks to Microsoft Networks to Microsoft Networks for Microsoft Networks for Microsoft Networks	Aquen Aquen Aquen Aquen Aquen
Local Area Connection P Authenication Advar Convect using ASUST #K/Insection 440 The connection uses the follows Cleret for Microsoft Net Cleret for Microsoft Net December Total Instat Or December Teamingtion Certrel Protocol Show icon in subfication and	ropin (100 soed) be 10/100 Integrated Con Con reg terms workd to Microsoft Networks for Networks for Networks	errites
Local Area Connection P Authenication Advar Convect using ASUST #K/Insection 446 The connection uses the follows Cleret for Missoont Netry Cleret for M	ropin/109 soed bit 10/100 Integrated Com org Anne. workd ind Microsoft Networks IEE Writemet Protocol. The o set provides connected OK	erites
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using AUST #7.0noadcom 440 The connection uses the follow Client to Miscosoft Net Client Client to Miscosoft Net Client Clien	Copin (10) sold bit 10/100 Integrated Co Con ng James works total integrates works integrates works integrates fill Con Prop Vinteeret Protocol. The r steprovides connected Con a retreets.	Cancel
Local Area Connection P Demail Authorsication Advar Convect using Authorsication Advar Convect using Connection uses the follow Convection uses the follow Convection Convection Advar Convection Instat Or Terromission Control Protocol (ICCP/IP) Pro Show icon in notification area Instat	Copin (10) sold bit 10/100 Integrated Co Con ng James works to Microsoft Networks NET writed Protocol. The s stratement Protocol. The	Cancel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7.0madcom 440 This connection uses the follows Clord to Microsoft Net Decretation Uses Technology Do Packet Scheduling Instat United Instruction Configuration Show icon in notification area Show icon in notification	ropin (10) sold bit 10/100 Integrated Co Con ng Jerns: works integrates works Integrates Proposition Proposition Proposition Proposition Integration Proposition Integration Proposition Integration	Cancel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7.0madcom 440 This connection uses the follows Client to Microsoft Net Client to Microsoft Net Decorption Transmission Certinal Protocol Instat Decorption Transmission Certinal Protocol Show icon in notification area Show icon in notification You can get P setings estigned as the capability. Otherwise, point and The setings estigned as The setings Show icon area The setings Show icon accepted as The setings Show icon accepted as The setings Show icon Show icon Show icon Show Show	Corport Here soed be 10/100 Integrated Cer Corr ag Jerres works for Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks to a efter connected Criterian Connected Criterian a efter connected Criterian consticutly Facua retwork to ask your retwork advect	Cancel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7.0madcom 440 This connection uses the follows Clerit to Microsoft Net Clerit to Microsoft Net Disconding Disconding Disconding Transmission Certing Protocol # Decorption Decorption Transmission Decorption Transmission Decorption Transmission Decorption Transmission Decorption Transmission Decorption Decorption	Corport Here soed be 10/100 Integrated Cor ang Amme works for Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks tor provide Contenues torter Con	Cancel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST #7./Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follows Clerit to Microsoft Net Clerit to Microsoft Clerit to Microsoft Net Clerit to Micr	Corport Here soed be 10/100 Integrated Cer Corr ag Arms works for Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks a when connected Core Core Core Core Core Core Core Core	Cancel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using Advartantication Advart Convection uses the follows Clerit to Microsoft Net Clerit to Microsoft Net	Corport Here soed be 10/100 Integrated Cor Corr ing Amme works for Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks tor Microsoft Networks a when connected Core per Here consticutly # your retwork to adapted	Close Close Close Concel Cancel Cancel
Local Area Connection P Denned Authentication Advar Convect using Advartantication Advart Convection uses the follows Million Connection Uses the follows Million Connection Uses the follows Million Content of Microsoft Net Million Connection Uses Instat Instat	ropin/100 rolpin/100 r	Cancel
Local Area Connection P Denned Authentication Advar Convect using Asuftertication (Advar Convection uses the follow Million Connection Uses the follow Million Connection Uses the follow Million Content to Microsoft Net Million Connection Uses Instat In	ropin/1109 soed bu 10/100 Integrated Cer Con Ing Amms works for Microsoft Networks Up Criterosoft Networks Up Criterosoft Protocol: The s soft provides Communicated costs cos	Cancel
Local Area Connection P Demail Authentication Advar Convect using ASUST eff./Broadcom 440 This connection uses the follow Ple and Photo Sharing District To Microsoft Net Distre District To Microsoft Net District To Microsoft Net	Corport 1100 cod	Carnciel
Local Area Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using Advartantication Advart Convect using Advartantication Advart Convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow P of and Partic Stream Advance This convection uses the follow Other and Partic Configuration This convection and the advance advance Other and Partic Configuration This convection Other and Partic Configuration This convection Other and Partic Configuration This advance Other and Partic Configuration Other and Partin Other and Partic Configuration Other and Partic Confi	ropin/1109 soed bu 10/100 Integrated Cer Con Ing Amme wooks for Microsoft Networks Up Integrated Protocol: The s source of the sourcested Con Con Ing	Cancel
Local Aron Connection P General Authentication Advar Convect using Advartantication Advart Convect using Advartantication Advart Convection uses the follow P of and Protect Network Instat Ore Instat Ore Convection Transmission Control Protected Instat Ore Ore Convection Transmission Control Protected Convection Transmission Control Protected Show icon in notification and Ore Show icon in notification and Ore	ropin/1109 soed bu 10/100 Integrated Co Con Ing Amms wooks for Microsoft Networks Up Cristeres Protocoft Networks up cristeres Connected Coc	Cancel
Local Aron Connection P General Authentication Advan Convect using Asubstration Advan Convect using Asubstration uses the follow Convection Convection The convection uses the follow Convection Convection Convection Convection Convection The convection of the follow Convection Convectio	ropin/1100 cod be 10/100 Integrated Co Con rig Amme wooks for Microsoft Networks U Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Co	Carnord Responsibilities Res

Configuring PC in Windows 2000

- Go to Start > Settings > Control Panel. In the Control Panel, double-click on Network and Dial-up Connections.
- 2. Double-click Local Area Connection.

3. In the Local Area Connection Status window click Properties.

4. Select Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) and click Properties.

- 5. Select the Obtain an IP address automatically and the Obtain DNS server address automatically radio buttons.
- 6. Click OK to finish the configuration.



Configuring PC in Windows 95/98/Me

- Go to Start > Settings > Control Panel. In the Control Panel, double-click on Network and choose the Configuration tab.
- Select TCP/IP > NE2000 Compatible, or the name of your Network Interface Card (NIC) in your PC.
- 3. Select the Obtain an IP address automatically radio button.

- 4. Then select the DNS Configurationtab.
- 5. Select the Disable DNS radio button and click OK to finish the configuration.

onliguration Isternician Access Control The following petwork components are installed: Microsoft Family Logon CASUST et //Iroadcom 44bs 10/100 Integrated Controller Dial Up Adapter TCP/RP -> Dial Up Adapter
The following getwork components are installed. Microsoft Family Logon ASUSTet//Irroadcom 440x 10/100 Integrated Controller Dial-Up Adapter TCPAP > ASUSTEE//Insaccom 440x 10/100 Integrated TCPAP > Dial-Up Adapter
Microsoft Family Logon ASUS TeK/Broadcom 440x 10/100 Integrated Controller Dial-Up Adapter TCP/IP > ASUSTEK/Broadcom 440x 10/100 Integrated TCP/IP > Dial-Up Adapter
ASUSTeK/Broadcom 440x 10/100 Integrated Controller Dial-Up Adapter TCP/IP > ASUSTEK/Broadcom 440x 10/100 Integrated TCP/IP > Dial-Up Adapter
TCP/IP > ASUSTeK/Broadcore 440a 10/100 integrated
TCP/IP → Dial Up Adapter
1
Add. Rgmove Poperties
Primary Network Logon
Microsoft Family Logon
Elle and Print Sharing
Description TCP/IP is the protocol you use to connect to the Internet and wide-area networks.
OK Cenc
2/12 Properties
Bindings Advanced NetBIOS
OKCane
2/IP Properties
Bindings Advanced NetBIDS NS Configuration Gateway WINS Configuration IP Add C Disable DNS C Facebo DNS
C Enacle DNS
North Contract
Mina Elegender verder
2
7/EIEDOVE
Operate Domo Descrit) Deder
5 Add
OK Cance

Configuring PC in Windows NT4.0

- Go to Start > Settings > Control Panel. In the Control Panel, double-click on Network and choose the Protocols tab.
- 2. Select TCP/IP Protocol and click Properties.

3. Select the Obtain an IP address from a DHCP server radio button and click OK.

ntification Ser	vices Protocols Adapters Bindings
etwork Protocol	·
Metheul Pro	kocol /SPX Compatible Transport BIOS 2001
eas.	
Description	
	OK Cance
seeft TCP/IP	OK. Cance Propertors
sade TCP/IP Siddens DNS	OK Cance Proportion 3 W/NS Addess Rouling
Address DNS Address DNS will address of a DHCP serve be space below dagter dagter Mr Obtan an	OK. Cance Proposition WVNS Addesse Rouring wVNS Addesse Rouring wWNS addesse wWNS addesse wWNS addesse wWNS addesse wWNS addesse
Address DNS Address DNS will address on a DHCP serve in pace below idegter ide	OK. Cance Proposition WVNS Addems Rovering with S Addems Rovering with S Addems Rovering with the subtransition does not have a DHCP server, administration for an addition, and then type it in
Address DNS will address to y a DHCP serve bit your netwook he space below dagter dagter Dittam on I C Specify an	OK. Cance Proportion WVNS Addems Proving www.sadamade.adjor.assigneed.to.thus restrevals.caed www.sadamade.adjor.assigneed.to.thus restrevals.caed www.sadamade.adjor.assigneed.to.thus restrevals.caed.thuse.ast.thus administration for an addiese.caed.thuse a DHCP server administration for an addiese.caed.thuse type if in Produces from a DHCP server Produces from a DHCP server
Address DHS Address DHS willP address Ca y a DHSP serve adapter adapter Address Debox Adapter Address Debox Adapter Adapter Address Debox Adapter Adapte	OK Carroe Proportion WVNS Addems Proving wWNS Addems Proving www.satureaturation Proving www.satureaturation www.saturaaturation www.saturaaturaaturaaturaaturaaturaaturaatur
Addeess DANS Addeess DANS on IP addeess co y a DHCP serve and your meteode he space below why our meteode he space below he sp	OK Carrier Proposition WVMS Addeese Proving w VMS Addeese Proving w United addeese Proving w United addeese for an addeese, and then type if in United addeese from a DHCP server P* address
Address DNS Address DNS In IP address of y a DHCP serve by a DHCP serve the space below dagter Adapter Documentation A C Specify an IP contained Distance Con-	OK Carice Proposition WVMS Addeess Proving wVMS Addeess Proving wVMS Addeess Proving w wVMS Addeess Proving w w w w w w w w w w w w w
debress DNS officers DNS of Packdess of a source below degler Control of the Specify an Control of the Specify an Control of the Specify an	OK Carice Proposition WVMS Addeese Routing wVMS Addeese Routing w Units addeese, and then type # in fr addeese from a DHCP server iP addeese from a DHCP server Agranced

Factory Default Settings

Before configuring your router, you need to know the following default settings.

Web Interface (Username and Password)

- Username: admin
- Password: admin



If you ever forget the login password, please press the reset button for more than 6 seconds to restore the factory default setting.

The default username and password are "admin" and "admin" respectively.

Device LAN IP settings

- ▶ IP Address: 192.168.1.254
- Subnet Mask: 255.255.255.0

ISP setting in WAN site

PPPoE

DHCP server

- ▶ DHCP server is enabled.
- Start IP Address: 192.168.1.100
- ▶ IP pool counts: 100

LAN and WAN Port Addresses

The parameters of LAN and WAN ports are pre-set in the factory. The default values are shown in the tale.

	LAN Port	WAN Port
IP address	192.168.1.254	
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0	The PPPoE function is
DHCP server function	Enabled	enabled to automatically get
IP addresses for distribution to PCs	100 IP addresses continuing from 192.168.1.100 through 192.168.1.199	the WAN port configuration from the ISP.

Information from your ISP

Before configuring this device, you have to check with your ISP (Internet Service Provider) to find out what kind of service is provided such as DHCP (Obtain an IP Address Automatically, Static IP (Fixed IP Address) or PPPoE.

Gather the information as illustrated in the following table and keep it for reference.

PPPoE(RFC2516)	VPI/VCI, VC / LLC-based multiplexing, Username, Password, Service Name, and Domain Name System (DNS) IP address (it can be automatically assigned by your ISP when you connect or be set manually).
PPPoA(RFC2684)	VPI/VCI, VC / LLC-based multiplexing, Username, Password and Domain Name System (DNS) IP address (it can be automatically assigned by your ISP when you connect or be set manually).
MPoA(RFC1483/ RFC2684)	VPI/VCI, VC / LLC-based multiplexing, IP address, Subnet mask, Gateway address, and Domain Name System (DNS) IP address (it is a fixed IP address).
IPoA(RFC1577)	VPI/VCI, VC / LLC-based multiplexing, IP address, Subnet mask, Gateway address, and Domain Name System (DNS) IP address (it is a fixed IP address).
Pure Bridge	VPI/VCI, VC / LLC-based multiplexing to use Bridged Mode.

Configuring with your Web Browser

Open your web browser, enter the IP address of your router, which by default is 192.168.1.254, and click "Go", a user name and password window prompt will appear. The default username and password are "admin" and "admin" respectively. (See Figure 3.14)

Connect to 192.1	68.1.254 🛛 🛛 🔀
	4
WebAdmin	
<u>U</u> ser name:	🔮 admin 🛛 👻
<u>P</u> assword:	•••••
	Remember my password
	OK Cancel

Figure 3.14: User name & Password Prompt Window

Congratulations! You are now successfully logon to the 3G/VoIP/(802.11g) ADSL2+ (VPN) Firewall Router!

Chapter 4: Configuration

At the configuration homepage, the left navigation column provides you the link to each configuration page. The category of each configuration page is listed as below.



ADSL Table

ARP Table DHCP Table Routing Table NAT Sessions UpnP Portmap PPTP Status IPSec Status L2TP Status Email Status VoIP Status VoIP Call Log Event Log Error Log

Diagnostic



Quick Start



Configuration

LAN WAN System Firewall VPN VoIP QoS Virtual Server Time Schedule Advanced



Language (provides user interface in English and French languages)

Status

ADSL Status

This section displays the ADSL overall status, which shows a number of helpful information such as DSP firmware version.

Status		
* ADSL Status		
Parameters		
DSP Firmware Version	E.25.41.32 A	
Connected	true	
Operational Mode	G.Dmt	
Annex Type	ADSL2	
Upstream	1024000	
Downstream	8054000	
SNR Margin(Upstream)	7 dB	
SNR Margin(Downstream)	14.5 dB	
Line Attenuation(Upstream)	0.0 dB	
Line Attenuation(Downstream)	0.0 dB	
CRC Errors(Upstream)	2	
CRC Errors(Downstream)	2	
Latency(Upstream)	Interleave	
Latency(Downstream)	Interleave	

Status		
* 3G Status		
Parameters		
Status •	3G Card not found	
Signal Strength	NA	
Network Name	NA	
Card Name	PAIA	
Card Firmware	N/4	
Current TX Bytes / Packets	0/0	
Current RX Bytes / Packets	0/0	
Total TX Bytes / Packets	0/0	
Total RX Bytes / Packets	0/0	
Clear		

Status: The current status of the 3G card.

Signal Strength: The signal strength bar indicates current 3G signal strength.

Network Name: The network name that the device is connected to.

ARP Table

This section displays the router's ARP (Address Resolution Protocol) Table, which shows the mapping of Internet (IP) addresses to Ethernet (MAC) addresses. This is useful as a quick way of determining the MAC address of the network interface of your PCs to use with the router's Firewall – MAC Address Filter function. See the Firewall section of this manual for more information on this feature.

MAC Address	Interface	Static
00.05.5d.71.92.69	iptan	no
	MAC	
	MAC Address 00.05.5d.71.92.69	MAC Address Interface 00.05.5d.71.92.69 iplan MAC

IP Address: A list of IP addresses of devices on your LAN (Local Area Network).

MAC Address: The MAC (Media Access Control) addresses for each device on your LAN.

Interface: The interface name (on the router) that this IP Address connects to.

Static: Static status of the ARP table entry:

- "no" for dynamically-generated ARP table entries.
- "yes" for static ARP table entries added by the user.

DHCP Table

* DHCP Table			
Type			
Leased .	Expired +	Permanent +	

Leased: The DHCP assigned IP addresses information.

Expired: The expired IP addresses information.

Permanent: The fixed host mapping information.

Leased Table

Leased Table			
IP Address	MAC Address	Client Host Name	Expiry
192.168.1.100	00.05.56.71.92.69	jasminelee	11 hours

IP Address: The IP address that assigned to client.

MAC Address: The MAC address of client.

Client Host Name: The Host Name (Computer Name) of client.

Expiry: The current lease time of client.

Routing Table

Status				
* Routing T	able			
Routing Tal	ble			
Valid	Destination	Netmask	GatewayInterface	Cost
1	0.0.0.0	0.0.0	0.0.0.0/ipwan	1
RIP Routine	g Table			
Destination	ĥ	Netmask	Gateway	Cost
0.0.0.0		0.0.0.0	0.000 0.000	

Routing Table

Valid: It indicates a successful routing status.

Destination: The IP address of the destination network.

Netmask: The destination Netmask address.

Gateway/Interface: The IP address of the gateway or existing interface that this route will use.

Cost: The number of hops counted as the cost of the route.

<u>RIP Routing Table</u>

Destination: The IP address of the destination network.

Netmask: The destination Netmask address.

Gateway: The IP address of the gateway that this route will use.

Cost: The number of hops counted as the cost of the route.

NAT Sessions

This section lists all current NAT sessions between interface of types external (WAN) and internal (LAN).

Status	
*NAT Sessions	
No active NAT sessions between interfaces of types external and internal.	
Refresh	

UPnP Portmap

The section lists all port-mapping established using UPnP (Universal Plug and Play. See Advanced section of this manual for more details on UPnP and the router's UPnP configuration options.

Status					
▼UPnP Portmap					
UPnP Portmap Table					
Name	Protocol	External Port	Redirect Port	IP Address	

PPTP Status

This shows details of your configured PPTP VPN Connections.

Status	itus					
*PPTP Statu	9					
VPN PPTP to	Remote Acces	ss Application				
Name	Туре	Enable	Active	Tunnel Connected	Call Connected	Encryption
VPN PPTP Is	e LAN-to-LAN A	pplication				
Name	Type	Enable	Active	Tunnel Connected	Call Connected	Encryption

Name: The name you assigned to the particular PPTP connection in your VPN configuration.

Type: The type of connection (dial-in/dial-out).

Enable: Whether the connection is currently enabled.

Active: Whether the connection is currently active.

Tunnel Connected: Whether the VPN Tunnel is currently connected.

Call Connected: If the Call for this VPN entry is currently connected.

Encryption: The encryption type used for this VPN connection.

IPSec Status

This shows details of your configured IPSec VPN Connections.

Status							
*IPSec S	tatus						
VPN Tuni	nets						
Name	Active	Connection State	Statistics	Local Subnet	Remote Subnet	Remote Gateway	SA

Name: The name you assigned to the particular VPN entry.

Active: Whether the VPN Connection is currently Active.

Connection State: Whether the VPN is Connected or Disconnected.

Statistics: Statistics for this VPN Connection.

Local Subnet: The local IP Address or Subnet used.

Remote Subnet: The Subnet of the remote site.

Remote Gateway: The Remote Gateway IP address.

SA: The Security Association for this VPN entry.

L2TP Status

This shows details of your configured L2TP VPN Connections.

Status						
*L2TP Statu						
VPNL2TP to	Remote Acces	s Application				
Name	Type	Enable	Active	Tunnel Connected	Call Connected	Encryption
VPNL2TP In	r LAN-to-LAN A	oplication				
Name	Туре	Enable	Active	Tunnel Connected	Call Connected	Encoption

Name: The name you assigned to the particular L2TP connection in your VPN configuration.

Type: The type of connection (dial-in/dial-out).

Enable: Whether the connection is currently enabled.

Active: Whether the connection is currently active.

Tunnel Connected: Whether the VPN Tunnel is currently connected.

Call Connected: If the Call for this VPN entry is currently connected.

Encryption: The encryption type used for this VPN connection.

Email Status

Details and status for the Email Account you have configured the router to check. Please see the Advanced section of this manual for details on this function.

Status	
*Email Status	
Email Account	
No accounts specified	

VoIP Status

Status				
+ VolP Sta	atus			
Phone Po	prt			
Index	Phone Number	User Domain/Realm	Display Name	Registered
1				unknown

VoIP Call Log

Status					
VolP Call	Log				
Phone Port	1-				
Phone Port	11				
Dialed Cali	s List				
index	Date & Time	Phone Number	Start Time	End Time	Duration
Received (Calls List				
ndex	Date & Time	Phone Number	Start Time	End Time	Duration
Missed Ca	lls List				
Index	Date & Time	Phone Number	Start Time	End Time	Duration

Event Log

This page displays the router's Event Log entries. Major events are logged to this window, such as when the router's ADSL connection is disconnected, as well as Firewall events when you have enabled Intrusion or Blocking Logging in the Configuration – Firewall section of the interface. Please see the Firewall section of this manual for more details on how to enable Firewall logging.

Status	
*EventLog Jan 01 00:00:00 home.gateway:ipsec:none: [INF0]Start IPIEC Initialize Jan 01 00:00:00 home.gateway:ipsec:none: [INF0]Start IPIEC Initialize Done Jan 01 00:00:12 home.gateway:im:none: Changed iplan IP address to 192.168.1.254 Jan 01 00:00:21 home.gateway:im:none: Reset SNOP community to factory default settings 	
Refresh Clear	

Error Log

Any errors encountered by the router (e.g. invalid names given to entries) are logged to this window.

Status			
*Error Log			
Error Log (time	s are in seconds since las	treboob	
When	Process	Error Log	

Diagnostic

It tests the connection to computer(s) which is connected to the LAN ports and also the WAN Internet connection. If PING **www.google.com** is shown <u>FAIL</u> and the rest is PASS, you ought to check your PC's DNS setting is correct.

Status		
*Diagnostic		
LAN Connection		
Testing Ethernet LAN connection	PASS	
Testing Wireless LAN connection	PASS	
WAN Connection		
Testing ADSL Synchronization	FAL.	
Testing 3G Device	FAL	
Testing WAN connection	FAL	
Ping Primary Domain Name Server	FAIL	
PING www.google.com	FAL	
Refresh		

Quick Start

1. Click Quick Start. Select the connect mode you want. There are 2 options to choose from: ADSL or 3G. Select ADSL mode from the drop down menu and click Continue.

Quick Start		
* WAN Port (WAN > Wireless > Vo	(P)	
Select WAN Port		
Connect Mode	ADSL 🕑	
Continue Jump to Wireless	setting	

2. If your ADSL line is not ready, you need to check your ADSL line has been set or not.



 If your ADSL line is ready, the screen appears ADSL Line is Ready. Choose Auto radio button and click Apply. It will automatically scan the recommended mode for you. Manually mode makes you to set the ADSL line by manual. (If you choose Manually, you will directly go to step 5.)

Quick Start		
* WAN Port (WAN > Wireless	 VOP) 	
ADSL Line Is Ready.		
Auto Scan	Auto O Manually	
Apply		
Quick Start		
* WAN Port (WAN - Wireless	- Yull")	
ADSL Line Is Ready		
Scanning		
Please wait for	12 seconds	

 The list below has different mode applied for your choice. Choose 0/33/PPPoE(Recommended) and click Apply.

Quick Start	
*Auto Scan	
1. 0/33/PPPoE 2. 0/33/RFC1483 SNAPILLC Bridged	
(Apply) Cancel	
5. Please enter "Username" and "Password" as supplied by your ISP(Internet Service Provider) and click Apply to continue.

Quick Start		
* WAN Port (WAN > Wireless >	VolP)	
Connection		
Profile Port	ADSL 🛩	
Protocol	PPPoE (RFC2516, PPP over Ethernet)	*
VPI/VCI	8 35	
Username		
Password		
Service Name		
Auth. Protocol	Chap(Auto) 🛩	
IP Address	0.0.0.0	
	(0.0.0.0' means 'Obtain an IP address automatically')	
Obtain DNS automatically	✓ Enable	
Primary DNS/Secondary DNS	0.0.0.0	

Profile Port: Select the connection mode. There is ADSL.

Protocol: Select the protocol mode. The default mode is PPPoE.

VPI/VCI: Enter the VPI and VCI information provided by your ISP.

Username: Enter the username provided by your ISP.

Password: Enter the password provided by your ISP.

Service Name: This item is for identification purposes. If it is required, your ISP provides you the information.

Authentication Protocol: Default is Auto. Your ISP advises on using Chap or Pap.

IP Address: Your WAN IP address. Leave this at 0.0.0.0 to obtain automatically an IP address from your ISP.

Obtain DNS automatically: Click to activate DNS and to enable the system to automatically detect DNS.

Primary DNS / Secondary DNS: Enter the IP addresses of the DNS servers. The DNS servers are passed to the DHCP clients along with the IP address and the netmask.

6. Configure the Wireless LAN setting.

Quick Start		
* Wireless (WAN > Wireless > VolP	0	
Parameters		
WILAN Service	Enable O Disable	
ESSID	wtan-ap	
ESSID Broadcast	Enable O Disable	
Regulation Domain	N.America 🛩	
Channel ID	Channel 1 (2.412 GHz)	
Security Parameters		
Security Mode	Disable 💌	
Apply Cancel		

WLAN Service: Default setting is set to Enable. If you want to use wireless, both 802.11g and 802.11b device in your network, you can select Enable.

ESSID: The ESSID is the unique name of a wireless access point (AP) to be distinguished from another. For security propose, change to a unique ID name to the AP which is already built-in to the router's wireless interface. It is case sensitive and must not excess 32 characters. Make sure your wireless clients have exactly the ESSID as the device, in order to get connected to your network.

ESSID Broadcast: It is function in which transmits its ESSID to the air so that when wireless client searches for a network, router can then be discovered and recognized. Default setting is **Enable**.

- Enable: When Enable is selected, you can allow anybody with a wireless client to be able to locate the Access Point (AP) of your router.
- Disable: Select Disable if you do not want broadcast your ESSID. When select Disable, no one will be able to locate the Access Point (AP) of your router.

Regulation Domain: There are seven Regulation Domains for you to choose from, including North America (N.America), Europe, France, etc. The Channel ID will be different based on this setting.

Channel ID: Select the ID channel that you would like to use.

Security Mode: You can disable or enable with WPA or WEP for protecting wireless network. The default mode of wireless security is **Disable**.

7. Set up VoIP.

VolP (WAN > Wreles	s ≥ VolP)					
aiP.	Enable	1	Region	USA X		
letting for Phone Port 1						
IP Service Provider	FWD	~	Phone Number		Usemame	
assword	1		Display Name			
setting for Phone Port 2	🗆 Sa	me as Phone	Port 1			
IP Senice Provider	FWD	2	Phone Number		Usemame	
assword			Display Name			

SIP: To use VoIP SIP as VoIP call signaling protocol. Default is set to Disable.

Region: This selection is a drop-down box, which allows user to select the country for which the VoIP device must work. When a country is selected, the country parameters are automatically loaded.

SIP Service Provider: This section allows you to select the service provider. When the selection is done, respective parameters below are automatically displayed.

Phone Number: This parameter holds the registration ID of the user within the VoIP SIP registrar.

Username: If the username is same as the Phone Number, leave it blank. Otherwise, fill in the space with your username given by your VoIP provider.

Password: This parameter holds the password used for authentication within VoIP SIP registrar.

Display Name: This parameter will be appeared on the Caller ID.

8. Wait for the configuration.

Quick Start	
* WAN Port (V/424 > V/releas > VolP)	
Save configuration.	
Save Config to FLASH. Please wait for 5 seconds.	

Quick Start	
* WAN Port (WAN > Wireless > VolP)	
Process finished	
Success.	
The Quick Start process is finished. Your device has been successfully configured.	

9. When ADSL is synchronic, it will appear "check".

Status							
Device	Information			* Port Stat	hank		
Model N	lame	BIPA	C 7404VGOX	Ethernet	16	1	
System	Up-Time	00.15	565	ADSL		K	
Hardwa	re Version	Solos	-WUSBIADSL-M/WG/VOS v1.00	Wireless		1	
Software	e Version	5.53.1	s5.rc2	30		×	
				FXS-1	1	ĸ	
				FXS-2		ĸ	
* WAN							
Port	Protocol	VPINCI	Connection	IP Address	Subnet Mask	Default Gateway	Primary DNS
ADSL	PPPoE	8 /35	xDSL line is not synchronized	0.0.0.0	0.0.0.0		0.0.0.0

Configuration

When you click this item, the column will expand to display the sub-items that will allow you to further configure your ADSL router.

LAN, WAN, System, Firewall, VoIP, QoS, Virtual Server, Time Schedule and Advanced

The function of each configuration sub-item is described in the following sections.

LAN - Local Area Network

Here are the items within the LAN section: Bridge Interface, Ethernet, IP Alias, Ethernet Client Filter, Wireless, Wireless Security, Wireless Client Filter, WPS, Port Setting and DHCP Server.

Bridge Interface

Configuration		
* Bridge Interface		
Parameters		
Bridge Interface	VLAN Port	
emennet.	IP1 IP2 IP3 IP4	
ethernet1	P1 P2 P3 P4	
ethernet2	P1 P2 P3 P4	
ethernet3	□ P1 □ P2 □ P3 □ P4	
Device Management		
Management Interface	() ethernet	
Apply		

You can setup member ports for each VLAN group under Bridge Interface section. From the example, two VLAN groups need to be created.

Ethernet: P1 (Port 1)

Ethernet1: P2, P3 and P4 (Port 2, 3, 4). Uncheck P2, P3, P4 from Ethernet VLAN port first.

Note: You should setup each VLAN group with caution. Each Bridge Interface is arranged in this order.

Bridge Interface	VLAN Port (Always starts with)
ethernet	P1 / P2 / P3 / P4
ethernet1	P2 / P3 / P4
ethernet2	P3 / P4
ethernet3	P4

Management Interface: To specify which VLAN group has possibility to do device management, like doing web management.

Note: NAT/NAPT can be applied to management interface only.

Ethernet

Configuration		
*Ethernet		
Primary IP Address		
IP Address	192 168 1 254	
Subriet Mask	255 255 0	
RIP	RIP v1 RIP v2 RIP v2 Multicast	
[466b]		
[white]		

Primary IP Address

IP Address: The default IP on this router.

Subnet Mask: The default subnet mask on this router.

RIP: RIP v1, RIP v2, and RIP v2 Multicast. Check to enable RIP function.

IP Alias

This function creates multiple virtual IP interfaces on this router. It helps to connect two or more local networks to the ISP or remote node. In this case, an internal router is not required.

s Netmask Security Interface	- IP Allas					
Netmask Security Interface	Parameters					
Internat 🐱	IP Address		Netmask		Security Interface	
					Internat 🐱	
ádt / Delete	Add Edt / Del	ete			Internat 💌	
	C 444 102 1 444	Cars.	Subort Unct	Security Inter	face	Distate

IP Address: Specify an IP address on this virtual interface.

SubNetmask: Specify a subnet mask on this virtual interface.

Security Interface: Specify the firewall setting on this virtual interface.

Internal: The network is behind NAT. All traffic will do network address translation when sending out to Internet if NAT is enabled.

External: There is no NAT on this IP interface and connected to the Internet directly. Mostly it will be used when providing multiple public IP addresses by ISP. In this case, you can use public IP address in local network which gateway IP address point to the IP address on this interface.

DMZ: Specify this network to DMZ area. There is no NAT on this interface.

Ethernet Client Filter

The Ethernet Client Filter supports up to 16 Ethernet network machines that helps you to manage your network control to accept traffic from specific authorized machines or can restrict unwanted machine(s) to access your LAN.

There are no pre-define Ethernet MAC address filter rules; you can add the filter rules to meet your requirements.

Configuration	
* Ethernet Client Filter	
Filtering Rules	
Ethemet Client Filter	Disable O Allowed O Blocked
MAC Address List Candidates + (MAC Address Format /s locaciociaciaciac)	
(Apply)	

Ethernet Client Filter: Default setting is set Disable.

- Allowed: check to authorize specific device accessing your LAN by insert the MAC Address in the space provided or click the Candidate button. Make sure your PC's MAC is listed.
- Blocked: check to prevent unwanted device accessing your LAN by insert the MAC Address in the space provided or click the Candidate button. Make sure your PC's MAC is not listed.

The maximum client is 16. The MAC addresses are 6 bytes long; they are presented only in hexadecimal characters. The number 0 - 9 and letters a - f are acceptable.

Note: Follow the MAC Address Format xx:xx:xx:xx:xx: Semicolon (:) must be included.

Candidates: automatically detects devices connected to the router through the Ethernet. .

Click the Candidate button to access the Active PC in LAN window.

🖉 Active PC in LAN -	Windows Internet Explorer	
🖉 http://192.168.1.254/st	atus/mactable.html	*
Active PC in LAN		
IP Address	MAC Address	
192.168.1.12	00:05:5d:71:92:69	
Add		

Active PC in LAN: Active PC in LAN displays a list of individual Ethernet device's IP Address &

MAC Address which connecting to the router.

You can easily by checking the box next to the IP address to be blocked or allowed. Then, Add to insert to the Ethernet Client Filter table. The maximum Ethernet client is 16.

Wireless

Configuration		
* Wireless		
Parameters		
WLAN Service	Enable O Disable	
Mode	802.11b + g 🛩	
ESSID	wfan-ap	
ESSID Broadcast	Enable O Disable	
Regulation Domain	N.America 😒	
Channel ID	Channel 1 (2.412 GHz)	
Tx PowerLevel	127 (1 - 127)	
Connected	tue	
AP MAC address	00:04:ed:00:00:01	
AP Firmware Version	2.17.24.0 Private	
Wireless Distribution System (WDS)		
WDS Service	O Enable O Disable	
1.Peer WDS MAC address	00:00:00:00:00:00	
2.Peer WDS MAC address	00:00:00:00:00:00	
3.Peer WDS MAC address	00.00.00.00.00.00	
4.Peer WDS MAC address	00.00.00.00:00:00	
Apply Cancel		

Parameters

WLAN Service: Default setting is set to Enable. If you do not have any wireless, both 802.11g and 802.11b, device in your network, select Disable.

Mode: The default setting is 802.11b+g (Mixed mode). If you do not know or have both 11g and 11b devices in your network, then keep the default in mixed mode. From the drop-down manual, you can select 802.11g if you have only 11g card. If you have only 11b card, then select 802.11b.

ESSID: The ESSID is the unique name of a wireless access point (AP) to be distinguished from another. For security purpose, change the default wlan-ap to a unique ID name to the AP already built-in to the router's wireless interface. It is case sensitive and must not excess 32 characters. Make sure your wireless clients have exactly the ESSID as the device, in order to get connected to your network.

Note: It is case sensitive and must not excess 32 characters.

ESSID Broadcast: It is function in which transmits its ESSID to the air so that when wireless client searches for a network, router can then be discovered and recognized. Default setting is **Enabled.**

- Disable: If you do not want broadcast your ESSID. Any client uses "any" wireless setting cannot discover the Access Point (AP) of your router.
- Enable: Any client that using the "any" setting can discover the Access Point (AP).

Regulation Domain: There are seven Regulation Domains for you to choose from, including North America (N.America), Europe, France, etc. The Channel ID will be different based on this setting.

Channel ID: Select the wireless connection ID channel that you would like to use.

Note: Wireless performance may degrade if select ID channel is already being occupied by other AP(s).

TX PowerLevel: It is a function that enhances the wireless transmitting signal strength. User may adjust this power level from minimum 1 up to maximum 127.

Note: The Power Level maybe different in each access network user premises environment and choose the most suitable level for your network.

Connected: Representing in **true** or **false**. That it is the connection status between the system and the build-in wireless card.

AP MAC Address: It is a unique hardware address of the Access Point.

AP Firmware Version: The Access Point firmware version.

Wireless Distribution System (WDS)

It is a wireless access point mode that enables wireless link and communication with other access point. It is easy to be installed simply to define peer's MAC address of the connected AP. WDS takes advantages of cost saving and flexibility which no extra wireless client device is required to bridge between two access points and extending an existing wired or wireless infrastructure network to create a larger network. It can connect up to 4 wireless APs for extending cover range at the same time.

In addition, WDS enhances its link connection security in WEP mode, WEP key encryption must be the same for both access points.

WDS Service: The default setting is **Disabled.** Check **Enable** radio button to activate this function.

- 1. Peer WDS MAC Address: It is the associated AP's MAC Address. It is important that your peer's AP must include your MAC address in order to acknowledge and communicate with each other.
- 2. Peer WDS MAC Address: It is the second associated AP's MAC Address.
- 3. Peer WDS MAC Address: It is the third associated AP's MAC Address.
- 4. Peer WDS MAC Address: It is the fourth associated AP's MAC Address.

Note: For MAC Address, Semicolon (:) must be included.

Wireless Security

You can disable or enable with WPA or WEP for protecting wireless network.

The default mode of wireless security is disabled.

Configuration		
*Wireless Security		
Parameters		
Security Mode	Disable 🛩	
Apply Cancel		

WPA-PSK / WPA2-PSK

Configuration			
*Wineless Security			
Parameters			
Security Mode	WPAPSK 🐱		
WPA Shared Key			
Group Key Renewal	500	seconds	
(Apply) Cancel			

Security Mode: You can disable or enable with WPA or WEP for protecting wireless network. The default mode of wireless security is **Disable**.

WPA Algorithms: There are two types of the WPA-PSK, WPA-PSK and WPA2-PSK. The WPA-PSK adapts the TKIP (Temporal Key Integrity Protocol) encrypted algorithms, which incorporates Message Integrity Code (MIC) to provide protection against hackers. The WPA2-PSK adapts CCMP (Cipher Block Chaining Message Authentication Code Protocol) of the AES (Advanced Encryption Security) algorithms.

WPA Shared Key: The key for network authentication. The input format is in character style and key size should be in the range between 8 and 63 characters.

Group Key Renewal: The period of renewal time for changing the security key automatically between wireless client and Access Point (AP). Default value is **600** seconds.

Configuration			
Wireless Security			
Parameters			
Security Mode	WEP	2	
WEP Authentication	Open System	· ·	
WEP Encryption	@WEP64 C	WEP128 Hex 🛩	
Passphrase		Generate	
Default Used WEP Key	1	(1-4)	
Cey 1	000000000		
Key 2	000000000		
Key 3	000000000		
Key 4	000000000		
HINT: Input 10 hexadecimal digits (0-9, a-	-f) in Key.		

WEP

WEP Authentication: To prevent unauthorized wireless stations from accessing data transmitted over the network, the router offers secure data encryption, known as WEP. If you require high security for transmissions, there are two options to select from: **Open System, Share key**.

WEP Encryption: To prevent unauthorized wireless stations from accessing data transmitted over the network, the router offers highly secure data encryption, known as WEP. If you require high security for transmissions, there are two alternatives to select from: **WEP 64 and WEP 128**. WEP 128 will offer increased security over WEP 64.

Passphrase: This is used to generate WEP keys automatically based upon the input string and a pre-defined algorithm in WEP64 or WEP128.

Default Used WEP Key: Select the encryption key ID; please refer to Key (1~4) below.

Key (1-4): Enter the key to encrypt wireless data. To allow encrypted data transmission, the WEP Encryption Key values on all wireless stations must be the same as the router. There are four keys for your selection. The input format is in HEX style, 10 and 26 HEX codes are required for WEP64 and WEP128 respectively.

Wireless Client / MAC Address Filter

The MAC Address supports up to 16 wireless network machines and helps you manage your network control to accept traffic from specific authorized machines or to restrict unwanted machine(s) to access your LAN.

There are no pre-define MAC Address filter rules; you can add the filter rules to meet your requirements.

Configuration	
Mareless Client (MAC Address) Filter	
Filtering Rules	
Filler Action	Disable Allowed Blocked
MAC Address List Candidates + (MAC Address Formet is tococcoccocce)	
Apply	

Wireless Client Filter: Default setting is set to Disable.

- Allowed: To authorize specific device accessing your LAN by insert the MAC Address in the space provided or click the Candidate button. Make sure your PC's MAC is listed.
- Blocked: To prevent unwanted device accessing the LAN by insert the MAC Address in the space provided or click the Candidate button. Make sure your PC's MAC is not listed.

The maximum client is 16. The MAC addresses are 6 bytes long; they are presented only in hexadecimal characters. The number **0** - **9** and letters **a** - **f** are acceptable.

Note: Follow the MAC Address Format xx:xx:xx:xx:xx: Semicolon (:) must be included.

Candidates: It automatically detects devices connected to the router through the Wireless feature.

Click the Candidate button to access the Associated Wireless Client window.

🚰 http://192.168.1.254 - Associated 📃 🗖	X
	~
Associated Wireless Clients	
00:18:de:04:9d:ee	
Add	

Associate Wireless Client: Displays a list of individual wireless device's MAC Address that currently

connects to the router.

You can easily by checking the box next to the MAC address to be blocked or allowed. Then, Add to insert to the Wireless Client (MAC Address) Filter table. The maximum Wireless client is 16.

WPS

WPS feature is follow Wi-Fi Alliance WPS standard and it easily set up security-enabled Wi-Fi networks in the home and small office environment. It is reduced by half the user steps to configure a network and supports two methods that are familiar to most consumers to configure a network and enable security.

Configuration		
*WP5		
Parameters		
Role	Registrar	
WP8 PIN	80845444	
Enrollee's PIN		
Start Cancel		

Port Setting

This section allows you to configure the settings for the router's Ethernet ports to solve some of the compatibility problems that may be encountered while connecting to the Internet, as well allowing users to tweak the performance of their network.

Configuration		
•Port Setting		
Parameters		
Port1 Connection Type	Auto	~
Port2 Connection Type	Auto	~
Port3 Connection Type	Auto	~
Port4 Connection Type	Auto	✓
IPv4 TOS Priority Control	◯ Enable	⊙ Disable
Set High Priority TOS		
63 62 61 60 🖸	59 🔲 58 🔜 57 🛛	56 55 54 53 52 51 50 49 48
47 🗌 46 🗌 45 🗌 44 📃	43 🔲 42 🛄 41 🛛	40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32
31 🗌 30 🗌 29 🗌 28 🔲	27 🔲 26 📃 25 🛛	24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

Port # Connection Type: There are Six options to choose from: Auto, disable, 10M half-duplex, 10M full-duplex, 100M half-duplex, 100M full-duplex and Disable. Sometimes, there are Ethernet compatibility problems with legacy Ethernet devices, and you can configure different types to solve compatibility issues. The default is Auto, which users should keep unless there are specific problems with PCs not being able to access your LAN.

IPv4 TOS priority Control (Advanced users): TOS, Type of Services, is the 2nd octet of an IP packet. Bits 6-7 of this octet are reserved and bit 0-5 are used to specify the priority of the packet.

This feature uses bits 0-5 to classify the packet's priority. If the packet is high priority, it will flow first and will not be constrained by the Rate Limit. Therefore, when this feature is enabled, the router's Ethernet switch will check the 2nd octet of each IP packet. If the value in the TOS field matches the checked values in the table (0 to 63), this packet will be treated as high priority.

DHCP Server

You can disable or enable the DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol) server or enable the router's DHCP relay functions. The DHCP protocol allows your router to dynamically assign IP addresses to PCs on your network if they are configured to obtain IP addresses automatically.

Configuration		
DHCP Server		
Configuration		
DHCP Server Mode	Disable DHCP Server DHCP Relay Agent	
Neat		
DHCP Server Status		
Allow Bootp	true	
Allow Unknown Clients	true	
Enable	trué	
Subnet Definitions		
Subnet Value	192.168.1.0	
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0	
Maximum Lease Time	86400 seconds	
Default Lease Time	43200 seconds	
Use local host address as DNS server	true	
Use local host address as default gateway	true	
Get subnet from IP interface	iptan	
IP Range 192.168.1.100-192.168.1.199		
Option domain-name-servers= 0.0.0.0		

To disable the router's DHCP Server, check Disabled and click Next, then click Apply. When the DHCP Server is disabled you will need to manually assign a fixed IP address to each PCs on your network, and set the default gateway for each PCs to the IP address of the router (by default this is 192.168.1.254).

To configure the router's DHCP Server, check DHCP Server and click Next. You can then configure parameters of the DHCP Server including the IP pool (starting IP address and ending IP address to be allocated to PCs on your network), lease time for each assigned IP address (the period of time the IP address assigned will be valid), DNS IP address and the gateway IP address. These details are sent to the DHCP client (i.e. your PC) when it requests an IP address from the DHCP server. Click Apply to enable this function. If you check "Use Router as a DNS Server", the ADSL Router will perform the domain name lookup, find the IP address from the outside network automatically and forward it back to the requesting PC in the LAN (your Local Area Network).

If you check DHCP Relay Agent and click Next, then you will have to enter the IP address of the DHCP server which will assign an IP address back to the DHCP client in the LAN. Use this function only if advised to do so by your network administrator or ISP.

Click Apply to enable this function.

WAN - Wide Area Network

WAN refers to your Wide Area Network connection, i.e. your router's connection to your ISP and the Internet. Here are the items within the WAN section: **WAN Interface, WAN Profile** and **ADSL Mode.**

WAN Interface

WAN Connection-ADSL Mode

The default setting for Connection Mode is ADSL and for Protocol is PPPoE.

Configuration	
- WAN Interface	
WAN Interface	
Main Port	ADSL 😪 (Current Main Port ADSL)
Failover Parameters	
Failover / Failback	Enable
Backup Port	3G + (Connection will be set always on.)
Connectivity Decision	Not in service when probing tailed after consecutive times.
Failover Probe Cycle	Every 12 seconds
Failback Probe Cycle	Every seconds
Detect Rule (either one)	1. ADSL Down 2. Ping Fall No Ping Ping Gateway Ping Host
(Apply)	

Main Port: User can select either ADSL or 3G mode.

Failover / Failback: Set Enable to trigger ADLS / 3G failover / failback function ready.

Backup Port: It links to backup port configuration page. It is necessary to configure it when Failover/Failback be set.

Connectivity Decision: Set how many times of probing failed to switch backup port.

Failover Probe Cycle: Set the time duration for the Failover Probe Cycle to determine when the router will switch to the backup connection (backup port) once the main connection (main port) fails.

Note: The time set is for each probe cycle, but the decision to change to the backup port is determined by Probe Cycle duration multiplied by connection Decision amount (e.g. From the image above it will be 12 seconds multiplied by 5 consecutive fails).

Failback Probe Cycle: Set the time duration for the Failback Probe Cycle to determine when the router will switch back to the main connection (main port) from the backup connection (backup port) once the main connection is communicating again.

Note: The time set is for each probe cycle, but the decision to change to the backup port is determined by Probe Cycle duration multiplied by Connection Decision amount (e.g. From ge above it will be 3 seconds multiplied by 5 consecutive fails).

Detect Rule:

Rule 1. ADSL Down

Rule 2. Ping Fail

- No Ping: It will not send any ping packet to determine the connection. It means to disable the ping fail detection.
- Ping Gateway: It will send ping packet to gateway and wait response from gateway in every "Probe Cycle".
- Ping Host: It will send ping packet to specific host and wait response in every "Probe Cycle". The host must be an IP address.

WAN Connection-3G Mode

In ADSL mode, as the ADSL is not available (failover/failback), it will switch to 3G mode for WAN Connection support. However, in 3G Mode ADSL cannot support WAN Connection when 3G Mode is unavailable.

Configuration		
▼ WAN Interface		
WAN Interface		
Main Port	3G V(Current Main Port: ADSL)	
Apply		

WAN Profile

PPPoE Connection

PPPoE (PPP over Ethernet) provides access control in a manner which is similar to dial-up services using PPP.

Configuration									
WAN Connec	tion								
PPPoE Routed									
Profile Port	ADSL 🗸								
Protocol	PPPoE (RFC2	516, PPP o	over Ethernet)			~			
Description	PPPoE WAN Lin	ik	VPI/VCI	8	/ 35	ATM Clas	s	UBF	२ 🗸
Username			Password			Service N	ame		
NAT	Enable		IP (0.0.0.0: Auto)	0.0.0.0		Auth. Pro	locol	Cha	ip(Auto) 🗸
Connection	Always On	~	Idle Timeout	0	min(s)	MTU		1492	2
RIP	🗌 RIP v1 🔲 F		RIP v2 Multicast			TCP MSS	Clamp	E	nable
MAC Spoofing	Enable 00	: 00	: 00 : 00	: 00	:00				
Obtain DNS	🗹 Automatic		Primary	0.0.0.0		Seconda	ry	0.0.0	0.0
Edit									
Edit Name	Descri	ption		Creator			VPI	VCI	Delete
() wanlin	nk PPPoE	WAN Link	¢	Factory I	Defaults		8	35	

Profile Port: Select the profile port as ADSL.

Protocol: The ATM protocol will be used in the device.

Description: A given name for the connection.

VPI/VCI: Enter the information provided by your ISP.

ATM Class: The Quality of Service for ATM layer.

Username: Enter the username provided by your ISP. You can input up to 128 alphanumeric characters (case sensitive). This is in the format of "username@ispname" instead of simply "username".

Password: Enter the password provided by your ISP. You can input up to 128 alphanumeric characters (case sensitive).

Service Name: This item is for identification purposes. If it is required, your ISP provides you the information. Maximum input is 15 alphanumeric characters.

NAT: The NAT (Network Address Translation) feature allows multiple users to access the Internet through a single IP account, sharing the single IP address. If users on your LAN have public IP addresses and can access the Internet directly, the NAT function can be disabled.

IP (0.0.0.3Auto): Your WAN IP address. Leave this at 0.0.0.0 to obtain automatically an IP address from your ISP.

Auth. Protocol: Default is Auto. Your ISP should advise you on whether to use Chap or Pap.

Connection:

- Always on: If you want the router to establish a PPPoA session when starting up and to automatically re-establish the PPPoA session when disconnected by the ISP.
- Connect on Demand: If you want to establish a PPPoA session only when there is a packet requesting access to the Internet (i.e. when a program on your computer attempts to access the Internet).

Idle Timeout: Auto-disconnect the broadband firewall gateway when there is no activity on the line for a predetermined period of time.

Detail: You can define the destination port and packet type (TCP/UDP) without checking by timer. It allows you to set which outgoing traffic will not trigger and reset the idle timer.

MTU: Maximum Transmission Unit. The size of the largest datagram (excluding media-specific headers) that IP will attempt to send through the interface.

RIP: RIP v1, RIP v2, and RIP v2 Multicast. Check to enable RIP function.

TCP MSS Clamp: This option helps to discover the optimal MTU size automatically. Default is enabled.

MAC Spoofing: Some service providers require the configuring of this option. You must fill in the MAC address that specify by service provider when it is required. Default is disabled.

Obtain DNS: A Domain Name System (DNS) contains a mapping table for domain name and IP addresses. DNS helps to find the IP address for the specific domain name. Check the checkbox to obtain DNS automatically.

Primary DNS: Enter the primary DNS.

Secondary DNS: Enter the secondary DNS

PPPoA Connection

Configura	tion									ANH I
WAN Cor	nnectio	m								
PPPoA Ro	buted									
Profile Por	d.	ADSL 🛩								
Protocol		PPPoA (RFC20	64, PPP over AA	L5)		*				
Descriptio	n	PPPoA Routed		VPI/VCI	0	33	ATM CI	888	UB.	R: 💌
Usemame	e:			Password		100 million (1990)				
NAT		Enable		(otuA 10.0.0.0) Fi	0.0.0.0)	Auth, Pr	rotocol	Chi	ap(Auto) 💌
Connectio	n	Always On	~	Idle Timeout	0	min(s)	MTU		150	0
RIP			P 12 RIP 12	Multicast			TCP MS	SS Clamp	1	Inable
Obtain DN	18	Automatic		Primary	0.0.01	1	Second	tary	0.0	0.0
Edt										
Edit	Nar	ne	Description			Creator		VP1	VCI	Delete
0	war	dink:	PPPoE WANT	Link		QuickStart		0	33	

Profile Port: Select the profile port as ADSL.

Protocol: The ATM protocol will be used in the device..

Description: A given name for the connection.

VPI/VCI: Enter the information provided by your ISP.

ATM Class: The Quality of Service for ATM layer.

Username: Enter the username provided by your ISP. You can input up to 128 alphanumeric characters (case sensitive). This is in the format of "username@ispname" instead of simply "username".

Password: Enter the password provided by your ISP. You can input up to 128 alphanumeric characters (case sensitive).

NAT: The NAT (Network Address Translation) feature allows multiple users to access the Internet through a single IP account, sharing the single IP address. If users on your LAN have public IP addresses and can access the Internet directly, the NAT function can be disabled.

IP (0.0.0.3Auto): Your WAN IP address. Leave this at 0.0.0.0 to obtain automatically an IP address from your ISP.

Auth. Protocol: Default is Auto. Your ISP should advises you on whether to use Chap or Pap.

Connection:

- Always on: If you want the router to establish a PPPoA session when starting up and to automatically re-establish the PPPoA session when disconnected by the ISP.
- Connect on Demand: If you want to establish a PPPoA session only when there is a packet requesting access to the Internet (i.e. when a program on your computer attempts to access the Internet).

Idle Timeout: Auto-disconnect the broadband firewall gateway when there is no activity on the line for a predetermined period of time.

Detail: You can define the destination port and packet type (TCP/UDP) without checking by timer. It allows you to set which outgoing traffic will not trigger and reset the idle timer.

MTU: Maximum Transmission Unit. The size of the largest datagram (excluding media-specific headers) that IP will attempt to send through the interface.

RIP: RIP v1, RIP v2, and RIP v2 Multicast. Check to enable RIP function.

TCP MSS Clamp: This option helps to discover the optimal MTU size automatically. Default is enabled.

Obtain DNS: A Domain Name System (DNS) contains a mapping table for domain name and IP addresses. DNS helps to find the IP address for the specific domain name. Check the checkbox to obtain DNS automatically.

Primary DNS: Enter the primary DNS.

Secondary DNS: Enter the secondary DNS.

MPoA Connection

Configur	onfiguration								
*WAN C	onnection								
RFC 148	3 Routed								
Profile P	ort	ADSL 🐱							
Protocol		MP6A (REC1483/REC2	584. Multiprotocol Encap	sulation over AAL5) 🛩					
Descript	ion	RFC 1483 routed n	VPI/VCI	0 33	ATM Class	61	UBR	×	
NAT		Enable	Encap. Method	LLC Bridged 😽	MTU		1500	15	
P (0.0.0.	0: Auto)	0.0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0	Gateway				
RIP			RIP v2 Multicast		TCP MSS	Clamp	20	nable	
IAC Spo	oofing	Enable 00 :00	200 : 00 : 00	2 040					
Obtain D	INS	Automatic	Primary	0.0.0.8	Secondar	ÿ	0.0.0	0	
Edit									
Edit	teame	Description		Creator		\/PI	VCI	Delete	
۲	wanlink:	PPPoE WAN	Link	QuickStart		0	33		

Profile Port: Select the profile port as ADSL.

Protocol: The ATM protocol will be used in the device.

Description: A given name for the connection.

VPI/VCI: Enter the information provided by your ISP.

ATM Class: The Quality of Service for ATM layer.

NAT: The NAT (Network Address Translation) feature allows multiple users to access the Internet through a single IP account, sharing a single IP address. If users on your LAN have public IP addresses and can access the Internet directly, the NAT function can be disabled.

Encap. mode: Choose whether you want the packets in WAN interface as bridged packet or routed packet.

MTU: Maximum Transmission Unit. The size of the largest datagram (excluding media-specific headers) that IP will attempt to send through the interface.

IP (0.0.0.2:Auto): Specify an IP address allowed to logon and access the router's web server.

Note: IP 0.0.0.0 indicates all users who are connected to this router are allowed to logon the device and modify data.

Netmask: The default is 255.255.255.0. User can change it to other such as 255.255.255.128. Type the subnet mask assigned to you by your ISP (if given).

Gateway: Enter the IP address of the default gateway (if given).

RIP: RIP v1, RIP v2, and RIP v2 Multicast. Check to enable RIP function.

TCP MSS Clamp: This option helps to discover the optimal MTU size automatically. Default is enabled.

MAC Spoofing: Some service providers require the configuring of this option. You must fill in the MAC address that specify by service provider when it is required. Default is disabled.

Obtain DNS: A Domain Name System (DNS) contains a mapping table for domain name and IP addresses. DNS helps to find the IP address for the specific domain name. Check the checkbox to obtain DNS automatically.

Primary DNS: Enter the primary DNS.

Secondary DNS: Enter the secondary DNS.

IPoA Routed Connection

Configur	infiguration									
- WAN C	onnection									
IPoA Ro	uted									
Profile P	ort	ADSL 🛩								
Protocol		IPeA (RFC1577	Classic IP and ARP over	ATM]		Ŷ				
Descript	ton	IPoA routed	VPI/VCI	0	(33		ATIA Class		UBR	~
NAT		Enable	MTU	1500						
P (0.0.0	O: Auto)	0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0]	Gateway			
RIP			IP v2 🔲 RIP v2 Multicast				TCP MSS C	amp	E En	able
Obtain D	INS	Automatic	Primary	0,000]	Secondary		0.0.0	7
Edit										
Ecit	Name	Desc	ription		0	reator		VPI	VCI	Delete
0	wanlink	PPPo	E WAN Link		9	uickStart		0	33	

Profile Port: Select the profile port as ADSL.

Protocol: The ATM protocol will be used in the device.

Description: A given name for the connection.

VPI/VCI: Enter the information provided by your ISP.

ATM Class: The Quality of Service for ATM layer.

NAT: The NAT (Network Address Translation) feature allows multiple users to access the Internet through a single IP account, sharing a single IP address. If users on your LAN have public IP addresses and can access the Internet directly, the NAT function can be disabled.

MTU: Maximum Transmission Unit. The size of the largest datagram (excluding media-specific headers) that IP will attempt to send through the interface.

IP (0.0.0.3 Auto): Specify an IP address allowed to logon and access the router's web server.

Note: IP 0.0.0.0 indicates all users who are connected to this router are allowed to logon the device and modify data.

Netmask: The default is 255.255.255.0. User can change it to other such as 255.255.255.128. Type the subnet mask assigned to you by your ISP (if given).

Gateway: Enter the IP address of the default gateway (if given).

RIP: RIP v1, RIP v2, and RIP v2 Multicast. Check to enable RIP function.

TCP MSS Clamp: This option helps to discover the optimal MTU size automatically. Default is enabled.

Obtain DNS: A Domain Name System (DNS) contains a mapping table for domain name and IP addresses. DNS helps to find the IP address for the specific domain name. Check the checkbox to obtain DNS automatically.

Primary DNS: Enter the primary DNS.

Secondary DNS: Enter the secondary DNS.

Pure Bridge

Configuration								
WAN Connectio	1							
RFC 1483 Bridge	l.							
Profile Port	ADSL 💌							
Protocol	Pure Bridge		~					
Description	RFC 1483 bridged	VPI/VCI	8	/ 35		ATM C	1855	UBR 👻
Encap. Method	LLC Bridged 🐱	Acceptable Frame Type	accept	tali	~	Filter T	уре	All 🖌
Add EditOel	1e							
Edit Nam	Description	Control	Creator			VPt	VCI	Delete
want	th PPPoE WAN I	ink	Factory Defaults			8	36	

Profile Port: Select the profile port as ADSL.

Protocol: The ATM protocol will be used in the device.

Description: A given name for this connection.

VPI/VCI: Enter the information provided by your ISP.

ATM Class: The Quality of Service for ATM layer.

Encap. mode: Choose whether you want the packets in WAN interface as bridged packet or routed packet.

Acceptable Frame Type: Specify which kind of traffic goes through this connection, all traffic or only VLAN tagged.

Filter Type: Specify the type of ethernet filtering performed by the named bridge interface.

All	Allows all types of ethernet packets through the port.
lp	Allows only IP/ARP types of ethernet packets through the port.
Рррое	Allows only PPPoE types of ethernet packets through the port.

3G

Configuration		
* WAll Connection		
Parameters		
Profile Port	36 💌	
Node	UNITS first 💌	
TEL No.	1001#	
APN	internet	
Usemame		
Password		
Auth Protocol	None 💌	
PIN		
Connection	Always On 😽	
Keep Alive	Enable	
Obtain DNS automatically	Enable	
Primary DNS/Secondary DNS	0000 0000	
Warring Entering the wrong Pits code I	hree times will lock the SML	

TEL No.: The dial string to make a GPRS / 3G user internetworking call. It may provide by your mobile service provider.

APN: An APN is similar to a URL on the WWW, it is what the unit makes a GPRS / UMTS call. The service provider is able to attach anything to an APN to create a data connection, requirements for APN's to be assigned varies between different service providers. Most service providers have an internet portal which they connect a DHCP Server to, giving you access to the internet i.e. Some 3G operators use the APN 'internet' for their portal. The default value of APN is "internet".

Username: Enter the username provided by your service provider.

Password: Enter the password provided by your service provider.

Authentication Type: Default is None. Manually specify CHAP (Challenge Handshake Authentication Protocol) or PAP (Password Authentication Protocol) if you know which type the server is using (when acting as a client), or else the authentication type you want clients connecting to you to use (when acting as a server). When using PAP, the password is sent unencrypted, whilst CHAP encrypts the password before sending, and also allows for challenges at different periods to ensure that an intruder has not replaced the client.

PIN: PIN stands for Personal Identification Number. A PIN code is a numeric value used in certain systems as a password to gain access, and authenticate. In mobile phones a PIN code locks the SIM card until you enter the correct code. If you enter the PIN code incorrectly into the phone 3 times in a row, then the SIM card will be blocked and you will require a PUK code from your network/service provider.

Connection:

Connection	Always On 🗸				
Keep Alive	Enable				
Obtain DNS automatically	Enable				
Primary DNS/Secondary DNS 0.0.0.0 0.0.0.0					
*Warning: Entering the wrong PIN code three times will lock the SIM.					

- Always On: The router will make UMTS/GPRS call when starting up. Enabling Always On, will give you an option of Keep Alive.
- Keep Alive: Set Enable to allow the router automatically reconnects the connection when ISP disconnects it.

Connection	Connect on Demand 🐱				
Idle Timeout	min(s)				
Obtain DNS automatically	✓ Enable				
Primary DNS/Secondary DNS	0.0.0.0				
*Warning: Entering the wrong PIN code three times will lock the SIM.					

- Connect to Demand: If you want to make UMTS/GPRS call only when there is a packet requesting access to the Internet (i.e. when a program on your computer attempts to access the Internet). In this mode, you must set Idle Timeout value at same time. Enabling Connect on Demand will give you an option of Idle Timeout.
- Idle Timeout: Auto-disconnect the connection when there is no activity on this call for a predetermined period of time. The default value is 10 seconds.

Obtain DNS Automatically: Select this check box to use DNS.

Primary DNS/ Secondary DNS: Enter the IP addresses of the DNS servers. The DNS servers are passed to the DHCP clients along with the IP address and the subnet mask.

Note: If you don't know how to set these values and please keep them untouched.

ADSL Mode

Configuration		
*ADSL Mode		
Parameters		
Connect Mode	All	
Modulation	G.Dmt.BisPlusAuto 😽	
Profile Type	MAIN	
Activate Line	true 💌	
Coding Gain	auto 🐱	
Apply Cancel	3010	

Connect Mode: This mode will automatically detect your ADSL line code, ADSL2+, ADSL2, AnnexM2 and AnnexM2+, ADSL, All. Please keep the factory setting unless ADSL is detected as the symptom of synchronization problem.

Modulation: It will automatically detect capability of your ADSL line mode. Please keep the factory setting unless ADSL is detected as the symptom of synchronization problem.

Profile Type: Please keep the factory settings unless ADSL is detected as the symptom of low link rate or unstable problems. You may need to change the profile setting to reach the best ADSL line rate, it depends on the different DSLAM and location.

Activate Line: Aborting (false) your ADSL line and making it active (true) again for taking effect with setting of Connect Mode.

Coding Gain: It reduces router's transmit power which will effect to router's downstream performance. Higher the gain will increase the downstream rate but it sometimes causes unstable ADSL line. The configurable ADSL coding gain is from 0 dB to 7dB, or automatic.

System

Here are the items within the System section: **Time Zone, Remote Access, Firmware Upgrade, Backup/Restore, Restart** and **User Management.**

lime Zone

Configuration				
* Time Zone				
Parameters				
Time Zone	CEnable O Disab	le		
Time Zone List	⊙ By City ◯ By Tim	e Difference		
Local Time Zone (+-GMT Time)	(GUT)Greenwich Me	ian Time	~	
CALLER CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	1 cart.css.gov	2. India.colorado.edu		
SHIP Sever IP Address	3. time.nist.gov	4, time-binist.gov		
Daylight Saving	Enabled			
Resync Period	1440	minutes		
		2 Street	7 6,	
Apply Cancel				

The router does not have a real time clock on board; instead, it uses the Simple Network Time Protocol (SNTP) to get the current time from an SNTP server outside your network. Choose your local time zone, click Enable and click the Apply button. After a successful connection to the Internet, the router will retrieve the correct local time from the SNTP server you have specified. If you prefer to specify an SNTP server other than those in the list, simply enter its IP address as shown above. Your ISP may provide an SNTP server for you to use.

Daylight Saving is also known as Summer Time Period. Many places in the world adapt it during summer time to move one hour of daylight from morning to the evening in local standard time. Check Enable box to set your local time.

Resync Period (in minutes) is the periodic interval the router will wait before it re-synchronizes the router's time with that of the specified SNTP server. In order to avoid unnecessarily increasing the load on your specified SNTP server you should keep the poll interval as high as possible – at the absolute minimum every few hours or even days.

Remote Access

Configuration			
*Remote Access			1
You may temporarily permit remote adm	ainistration of this netwo	rk device	
Allow Access for	30	minutes. (0 means allowed allways)	
Enable			

To temporarily permit remote administration of the router (i.e. from outside your LAN), select a time period the router will permit remote access for and click Enable. You may change other configuration options for the web administration interface using Device Management options in the Advanced section of the GUI.

If you wish to permanently enable remote access, choose a time period of <u>0</u> minute.

Firmware Upgrade

Configuration		
▶ Firmware Upgrade		
You may upgrade the system software on y	your network device	
New Firmware Image	Browse	
Upgrade		

Your router's "firmware" is the software that allows it to operate and provides all its functionality. Think of your router as a dedicated computer, and the firmware as the software it runs. Over time this software may be improved and revised, and your router allows you to upgrade the software it runs to take advantage of these changes.

Clicking on Browse will allow you to select the new firmware image file you have downloaded to your PC. Once the correct file is selected, click Upgrade to update the firmware in your router.



Backup / Restore

Configuration	
▶Backup.Restore	
Allows you to backup the configuration settings to or restore configuration from your computer.	your computer,
Backup Configuration	
Backup configuration to your computer.	
Backup	~
Restore Configuration	
Configuration File	Browse
"Restore" will overwrite the current configuration and save current configuration.	I restart the device. If you want to keep the current configuration, please use "Backup" first to
Restore	

These functions allow you to save and backup your router's current settings to a file on your PC, or to restore a previously saved backup. This is useful if you wish to experiment with different settings, knowing that you have a backup handy in the case of any mistakes. It is advisable to backup your router's settings before making any significant changes to your router's configuration.

Press Backup to select where on your local PC to save the settings file. You may also change the name of the file when saving if you wish to keep multiple backups.

Press Browse to select a file from your PC to restore. You should only restore settings files that have been generated by the Backup function, and that were created when using the current version of the router's firmware. Settings files saved to your PC should not be manually edited in any way.

After selecting the settings file you wish to use, pressing Restore will load those settings into the router.

Restart Router

Click Restart with option Current Settings to reboot your router (and restore your last saved configuration).

Configuration	
• Restart Router	
After restarting, please wait for a fe settings, please select the "Factory	w seconds for system to come up.If you would like to reset all configuration to factory default Default Settings" option.
Restart Router with	Current Settings
	O Factory Default Settings
Restart	

If you wish to restart the router using the factory default settings (for example, after a firmware upgrade or if you have saved an incorrect configuration), select Factory Default Settings to reset to factory default settings.

You may also reset your router to factory settings by holding the small Reset pinhole button more than 6 seconds on the back of your router.

Caution: After pressing the RESET button for more than 6 seconds, to be sure you power cycle the device again.

User Management

Configura	ition				
• User Ma	nagement				
Current D	efined Users				
Valid User		C	omment	Password	Confirm Password
		1 1			
Add	Edit / Delete				
Edit	Valid	User	Comment		Delete
0	true	admin	Default admir	n user	

In order to prevent unauthorized access to your router's configuration interface, it requires all users to login with a password. You can set up multiple user accounts, each with their own password.

You are able to Edit existing users and Add new users who are able to access the device's configuration interface. Once you have clicked on Edit, you are shown the following options:

Confly	paration				
User	Management				
Curren	nt Defined Users				
Valid User			Comment	Password	Confirm Password
÷	admin		Default admin user		
Add	Edit / Delete				
Edit	Valid	User	Comment		Delete
0	true	admin	Default adm	in user	

You can change the user's password, whether their account is active and valid, as well as add a comment to each user account. Click Edit/Delete button to save your revise. You cannot delete the default admin account, if you do you will be log out. However, you can delete any other created accounts by clicking Delete when editing the user. You are strongly advised to change the password on the default "admin" account when you receive your router, and any time you reset your configuration to Factory Defaults.

Configurat	ión				
User Man	agement				
Current De	fined Users				
Valid Us	er	Comn	nent	Password	Confirm Password
Add I	Edit / Delete				
Edit	Valid	User	Comment		Delete
0	true	admin	Default ad	min user	

When you create a user account, check Valid box and fill in the respective information for User, Comment, Password and Confirm Password in the blanks provided. Then click the Add button to add your new user account.

Config	paration				
• User	Management				
Curren	nt Defined Users				
Valid	User	Com	nent	Password	Confirm Password
	Test	Test			
Add	Edit / Delete				
Edit	Valid	User	Comment	1	Delete
Ó	true	admin	Default ad	fmin user	

To delete a user account, click on the Delete radio button on the right column of the account you wish to delete and then click the Edit/Delete button on the top to confirm your deletion.

Configura	ation				
User Ma	inagement				
Current D	efined Users				
Valid User		Cor	nment	Password	Confirm Password
Add	Edit / Delete				
Edit	Valid	User	Comment	Ĵ.	Delete
0	true	admin	Default ad	min user	
0	true	Test	Test		۲
Firewall and Access Control

Your router includes a full SPI (Stateful Packet Inspection) firewall for controlling Internet access from your LAN, as well as helping to prevent attacks from hackers. Besides, when using NAT, the router acts as a "natural" Internet firewall, as all PCs on your LAN will use private IP addresses that cannot be directly accessed from the Internet.



Firewall & Filter

Firewall: Prevent outsiders from accessing your local network. The router provides three levels of security support:



NAT natural firewall: This masks LAN users' IP addresses which are invisible to users on the Internet, thus making it more difficult for a hacker to target a machine on your network. This natural firewall is turned on when NAT function is enabled.

Firewall Security and Policy (General Settings): Inbound direction of Packet Filter rules to prevent unauthorized computers or applications to access your local network from the Internet.

Intrusion Detection: Enable Intrusion Detection to detect, prevent and log malicious attacks.

Access Control: Prevent access from PCs on your local network:

Firewall Security and Policy (General Settings): Outbound direction of Packet Filter rules to prevent unauthorized computers or applications from accessing the Internet.

URL Filter: To block PCs on your local network from unwanted websites.

Listed are the items under the Firewall section: **General Settings**, **Packet Filter**, **Intrusion Detection**, **URL Filter**, **IM/P2P Blocking** and **Firewall Log**.

General Settings

You can choose not to enable Firewall and still able to access to URL Filter and IM/P2P Blocking or enable the Firewall using preset filter rules and modify the port filter rules as required. The Packet Filter is used to filter packets based-on Applications (Port) or IP addresses.

Configuration					
General Settings					
Firewall Security					
Security	O Enable 💿 Disable				
	All blocked/User-defined				
Policy	High security level				
	Medium security level				
	C Low security level				
(If some applications ca Port Filter rules. For example Firewall.)	annot work after enabling Firewall, please check the Packet Filter especially adding (TCP:443,outbound allowed) will let HTTPS data go through				
Block WAN Request	🔿 Enable 💿 Disable				
(A Enable for preventing :	any ping test from Internet, such as hacker attack.)				
SIP ALG	💿 Enable 🔘 Disable				
FTP ALG	💿 Enable 🔘 Disable				
Annix					
Apply					

There are four options when you enable the Firewall, they are:

- All blocked/User-defined: no pre-defined port or address filter rules by default, meaning that all inbound (Internet to LAN) and outbound (LAN to Internet) packets will be blocked. Users have to add their own filter rules for further access to the Internet.
- High/Medium/Low security level: the predefined port filter rules for High, Medium and Low security are displayed in Port Filters of Packet Filter.

Select either High, Medium or Low security level to enable the Firewall. The only difference between these three security levels is the preset port filter rules in the Packet Filter. Firewall functionality is the same for all levels; it is only the list of preset port filters that changes between each setting. For more detailed on level of preset port filter information, refer to Table 1: Predefined Port Filter.

If you choose of the preset security levels and add custom filters, this level of filter rules will be saved even and do not need to re-configure the rules again if you disable or switch to other firewall level.

The "Block WAN Request" is a stand-alone function and not relate to whether security enable or

disable. Mostly it is for preventing any scan tools from WAN site by hacker.



Packet Filter

This function is only available when the Firewall is enabled and one of these four security levels is chosen (All blocked, High, Medium and Low). The preset port filter rules in the Packet Filter must modify accordingly to the level of Firewall, which is selected. See Table1: Predefined Port Filter for more detail information.

Confi	pur ation								
Paci	ket Filter								
Paran	neters								
Rule Name Helper			eeSelect						
Time	Schedule		Always On 🐱						
lourc	e IP Address(es)		0.0.0		Net	mask	0.0.0.0		
esti	nation IP Address	(es)	0000		Net	mask	0.0.0.0		
ype			TCP	v	Pro	tocol Number			
lourc	e Port		0 - 6553	5					
Destin	nation Port		0 . 6553	5					
nbou	nd		Allow 👻						
Dutbo	und		Allow 🐱						
	Estroute	5							
HOU	Edity Develop	-	Country ID (Michaeles)			Deverse a setting	_	he have a d	
	Rule Name	Time Schedule	Destination IP (Netmask	Pro	lozol	Destination port(s)		Outhound	
			0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0		0 ~ 65535			Block	
Q.	mei_http	Anways On	0.0.0.0/0.0.0	TC		80 ~ 80		Allow	
6	mei das	Always On	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	UD	5	0 ~ 65535		Block	1
~	inter ante	a strate out	0.0.0/0.0.0.0	00		53 ~ 53		Allow	

Example: Predefined Port Filters Rules

The predefined port filter rules for High, Medium and Low security levels are listed. See Table 1.

Note: Firewall – All Blocked/User-defined, you must define and create the port filter rules yourself. No predefined rule is being preconfigured.

Table 1: Predefined		Po Num	ort nber	Firewa	Firewall - Low F		- Medium	Firewall – High	
Port Filter	Protocol	Start	End	Inbound	Outbound	Inbound	Outbound	Inbound	Outbound
HTTP(80)	TCP(6)	80	80	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
DNS (53)	UDP(17)	53	53	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
DNS (53)	TCP(6)	53	53	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
FTP(21)	TCP(6)	21	21	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
Telnet(23)	TCP(6)	23	23	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
SMTP(25)	TCP(6)	25	25	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
POP3(110)	TCP(6)	110	110	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
NEWS(NNTP) (Network News Transfer Protocol)	TCP(6)	119	119	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
RealAudio/ RealVideo (7070)	UDP(17)	7070	7070	YES	YES	YES	YES	NO	NO
PING	ICMP(1)	N/A	N/A	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
H.323(1720)	TCP(6)	1720	1720	YES	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
T.120(1503)	TCP(6)	1503	1503	YES	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
SSH(22)	TCP(6)	22	22	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	NO
NTP /SNTP	UDP(17)	123	123	NO	YES	NO	YES	NO	YES
HTTP/HTTP Proxy (8080)	TCP(6)	8080	8080	NO	YES	NO	NO	NO	NO
HTTPS(443)	TCP(6)	443	443	NO	YES	NO	YES	N/A	N/A
ICQ (5190)	TCP(6)	5190	5190	YES	YES	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
MSN (1863)	TCP(6)	1863	1863	YES	YES	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
MSN (7001)	UDP(17)	7001	7001	YES	YES	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
MSN VEDIO (9000)	TCP(6)	9000	9000	NO	YES	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Inbound: Internet to LAN Outbound: LAN to Internet YES: Allowed NO: Blocked N/A: Not Applicable

Configuration				5
*Packet Filter				
Parameters				
Rule Name Helper	<< -Sele	t- 👻		
Time Schedule	Always On 👻			
Source IP Address(es)	0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0	
Destination IP Address(es)	0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0	
ype	TCPAUDP	Protocol Number		
ource Port	0 . 65535			
estination Port	0 - 65535			
nbound	Allow 🛩			
Outbound	Allow 🐱			

Packet Filter – Add TCP/UDP Filter

Rule Name Helper: Users-define description to identify this entry or click "Select" drop-down menu to select existing predefined rules. The maximum name length is 32 characters.

Time Schedule: It is self-defined time period. You may specify a time schedule for your prioritization policy. For setup and detail, refer to Time Schedule section

Source IP Address(es) / Destination IP Address(es): This is the Address-Filter used to allow or block traffic to/from particular IP address(es). Selecting the Subnet Mask of the IP address range you wish to allow/block the traffic to or form; set IP address and Subnet Mask to 0.0.0.0 to inactive the Address-Filter rule.

Tip: To block access, to/from a single IP address, enter that IP address as the Host IP Address and use a Host Subnet Mask of "255.255.255.255".

Type: It is the packet protocol type used by the application, select TCP, UDP or both TCP/UDP.

Protocol Number: Insert the port number.

Source Port: This Port or Port Ranges defines the port allowed to be used by the Remote/WAN to connect to the application. Default is set from range 0 ~ 65535. It is recommended that this option be configured by an advanced user.

Destination Port: This is the Port or Port Ranges that defines the application.

Inbound / Outbound: Select Allow or Block the access to the Internet ("Outbound") or from the Internet ("Inbound").

Click Add button to apply your changes.

Packet Filter – Add Raw IP Filter

Go to "Type" drop-down menu, select "Use Protocol Number".

Cenfiguration			
Packet Filter			
Parameters			
Rule Name Helper	**Select	*	
Time Schedule	Always On 👻		
Source IP Address(es)	0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0
Destination IP Address(es)	0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0
Type	Use Protocol Number 🛩	Protocol Number	
Source Port	0 85535		
Destination Port	0		
Inbound	Allow 💌		
Outbound	Allow 💌		
Add Edit / Delete			

Rule Name Helper: Users-define description to identify this entry or choosing "Select" drop-down menu to select existing predefined rules.

Time Schedule: It is self-defined time period. You may specify a time schedule for your prioritization policy. For setup and detail, refer to Time Schedule section

Source IP Address(es) / Destination IP Address(es): This is the Address-Filter used to allow or block traffic to/from particular IP address(es). Selecting the Subnet Mask of the IP address range you wish to allow/block the traffic to or form; set IP address and Subnet Mask to 0.0.0.0 to inactive the Address-Filter rule.

Tip: To block access, to/from a single IP address, enter that IP address as the Host IP Address and use a Host Subnet Mask of "255.255.255.255".

Type: It is the packet protocol type used by the application, select TCP, UDP or both TCP/UDP.

Protocol Number: Insert the port number, i.e. GRE 47.

Source Port: This Port or Port Ranges defines the port allowed to be used by the Remote/WAN to connect to the application. Default is set from range $0 \sim 65535$. It is recommended that this option be configured by an advanced user.

Destination Port: This is the Port or Port Ranges that defines the application.

Inbound / Outbound: Select Allow or Block the access to the Internet ("Outbound") or from the Internet ("Inbound").

Click the Add button to apply your changes.

Example: Configuring your firewall to allow a publicly accessible web server on your LAN

The predefined port filter rule for HTTP (TCP port 80) is the same no matter whether the firewall is set to a high, medium or low security level. To setup a web server located on the local network when the firewall is enabled, you have to configure the Port Filters setting for HTTP.

As you can see from the diagram below, when the firewall is enabled with one of the three presets (Low/Medium/High), inbound HTTP access is not allowed which means remote access through HTTP to your router is not allowed.

Note: Inbound indicates accessing from Internet to LAN and Outbound is from LAN to the Internet.

• Paci	oet Filler										
Paran	oeters										
Rule	Vame Helper					ee Selec					
Time Schedule			Alway	18 0	n y						
Source IP Address(es)		0.0.0.0	0			140	tmask	0.0.0	0		
Destin	Destination IP Address(es)		0.0.0	0			Ne	tmask	0.0.0	0	
Туре	Туре		TCP	TCP		~	Pro	itocol Number			
Sourc	Source Port		0		. 65535	1					
Destin	nation Port		0		. 65535						
inbou	nd		Allow	×							
Outbo	und		Allow	v							
Add	Edit / Delete										
	Rule Name	Time Schedule	Source IP / Destination	Net	mask Netmask		Protocol	Source port(s) Destination port(s)		Inbound Outbound	
0	mei_http	Always On	0.0.0.0/0.0	0.0.0			TCP	0 - 65535 80 - 80		Block Allow	0
0	mei_dns	Always On	0.0.0.0/0.0	0000/0000			UDP	0 - 65535 53 - 53		Block Allow	0
0	mei_tdns	Always On	0.0.0.0/0.0	0.0			TCP	0 - 65535 53 ~ 53		Block Allow	0
0	ntei_ftp	Always On	0.0.0.0/0.0	0.0			TCP	0 = 65535		Block	0

Configuring Packet Filter:

1. Click Packet Filters. You will then be presented with the predefined port filter rules screen (in this case for the low security level), shown below:

Note: You may click Edit the predefined rule instead of Delete it. This is an example to show to how you add a filter on your own.

Configuration			
Packet Filter			
Parameters			
Rule Name Helper	< <select< th=""><th>*</th><th></th></select<>	*	
Time Schedule	Always On 🐱		
Source IP Address(es)	0.0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0
Destination IP Address(es)	0.0.0.0	Netmask	0.0.0.0
Type	TOP	Protocol Number	
Bource Port	UDP		
Destination Port	TCP/UDP Lise Brotecol Number		
nbound	Allow Y		
Outbound	Allow 😒		

2. Choose the radio button you want to delete the existing HTTP rule. Click Edit/Delete button to delete the existing HTTP rule.

Conf	iguration						
Pac	ket Filter						
Para	meters						
Rule Name Helper			lei_http <<	Select	~		
Time	Schedule		Always On 🐱				
Sour	ce IP Address(e	98)	0.0.0.0	N	letmask	0.0.0.0	
Dest	ination IP Addre	ess(es)	0.0.0.0	N	letmask	0.0.0.0	
Туре			ТСР	P	rotocol Number		
Sour	ce Port		0 - 65535				
Dest	ination Port		80 - 80				
Inbou	und		Block 💌				
Outb	ound		Allow 🔽				
Add	Edit / Dele	ite					
Edit	Pulo Nomo	Timo Schodulo	Source IP / Netmask	Protocol	Source port(s)	Inbound	Delete
Eall	Rule Name	Time Schedule	Destination IP / Netmask	FIDIOCOI	Destination port(s)	Outbound	Delete
0	lai http	Alwaye On	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	TOP	0~65535	Block	0
0	iei_imp	Aimaya Off	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	101	80 ~ 80	Allow	0
0	lei dec	Alwaye On	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0		0~65535	Block	0
0	iei_uiis	Always Off	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	ODF	53~53	Allow	0

3. Input the Rule Name, Time Schedule, Source/Destination IP, Type, Source/Destination Port, Inbound and Outbound.

Example:

Application: Cindy_HTTP Time Schedule: Always On Source / Destination IP Address(es): 0.0.0.0 (I do not wish to active the address-filter, instead I use the port-filter) Type: TCP (Please refer to Table1: Predefined Port Filter) Source Port: 0-65535 (I allow all ports to connect with the application)) Redirect Port: 80-80 (This is Port defined for HTTP) Inbound / Outbound: Allow

Configuration				
Packet Filter				
Parameters				
Rule Name Helper	Cindy_HTTP < <sele< th=""><th>ct 💌</th><th></th><th></th></sele<>	ct 💌		
Time Schedule	Always On 🐱			
Source IP Address(es)	0.0.0.0	Netr	nask O	.0.0.0
Destination IP Address(es)	0.0.0.0	Netr	nask O	.0.0.0
Туре	TCP	Prot	ocol Number	
Source Port	0 - 65535			
Destination Port	80 - 80			
Inbound	Allow 😒			
Outbound	Allow 😒			
Add Edit / Delete				
Rule Name Time Schedule	Source IP / Netmask	Protocol	Source port(s)	Inbound
The Name Time Schedule	Destination IP / Netmask	TOLOCOT	Destination port(s)	Outbound

1. The new port filter rule for HTTP is shown below:

\sim	Cindy UTTD	Alwove On	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	тер	0~65535	Allow	~
0	Cilidy_HTTP	Always Off	0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	TUP	80 ~ 80	Allow	0

2. Configure your Virtual Server ("port forwarding") settings so that incoming HTTP requests on port 80 will be forwarded to the PC running your web server:



For how to configure the HTTP in Virtual Server, please refer to the Add Virtual Server sub-section under the Virtual Server section for detail.

Configuration							1
Port Ferwarding							
Add Virtual Server in "IP	Interface						
Virtual Server Entry							
Application Helper +		1	** -Select-	*)			
Protocol		tsp 🛩		Time Schedu	ale Ahways On 😪	1	
External Port		from 0	to 0	Redirect Por	t from 0	to 0	1
Internal IP Address Can	didates •						
Apply Edit/Delete	Return*						
Edit Application	Time Schedule	Protocol	External Port	Redirect Port	IP Address	Interface	Delete
O HTTP_Server	Always On	tcp	80 - 80	80 - 80	192.168.1.101	ipwan	0

Intrusion Detection

Intrusion Detection		
Parameters		
Intrusion Detection	🔘 Enak	le 💿 Disable
Victim Protection Block Duration	600	seconds
Scan Attack Block Duration	86400	seconds
DOS Attack Block Duration	1800	seconds
Maximum TCP Open Handshaking Count	100	per second
Maximum Ping Count	15	per second
Maximum ICMP Count	100	per second
Арріу		

The router's Intrusion Detection System (IDS) is used to detect hacker attacks and intrusion attempts from the Internet. If the IDS function of the firewall is enabled, inbound packets are filtered and blocked depending on whether they are detected as possible hacker attacks, intrusion attempts or other connections that the router determines to be suspicious.

Blacklist: If the router detects a possible attack, the source IP or destination IP address will be added to the Blacklist. Any further attempts using this IP address will be blocked for the time period specified as the Block Duration. The default setting for this function is false (disabled). Some attack types are denied immediately without using the Blacklist function, such as Land attack and Echo/CharGen scan.

Intrusion Detection: If enabled, IDS will block Smurf attack attempts. Default is false.

Block Duration:

- Victim Protection Block Duration: This is the duration for blocking Smurf attacks. Default value is 600 seconds.
- Scan Attack Block Duration: This is the duration for blocking hosts that attempt a possible Scan attack. Scan attack types include X'mas scan, IMAP SYN/FIN scan and similar attempts. Default value is 86400 seconds.
- DoS Attack Block Duration: This is the duration for blocking hosts that attempt a possible Denial of Service (DoS) attack. Possible DoS attacks this attempts to block include Ascend Kill and WinNuke. Default value is 1800 seconds.

Max TCP Open Handshaking Count: This is a threshold value to decide whether a *SYN Flood* attempt is occurring or not. Default value is 100 TCP SYN per seconds.

Max PING Count: This is a threshold value to decide whether an *ICMP Echo Storm* is occurring or not. Default value is 15 ICMP Echo Requests (PING) per second.

Max ICMP Count: This is a threshold to decide whether an *ICMP flood* is occurring or not. Default value is 100 ICMP packets per seconds except ICMP Echo Requests (PING).

For SYN Flood, ICMP Echo Storm and ICMP flood, IDS will just warn the user in the Event Log. It

cannot protect against such attacks.

Intrusion Name	Detect Parameter	Blacklist	Type of Block Duration	Drop Packet	Show Log
Ascend Kill	Ascend Kill data	Src IP	DoS	Yes	Yes
WinNuke	TCP Port 135, 137~139, Flag: URG	Src IP	DoS	Yes	Yes
Smurf	ICMP type 8 Des IP is broadcast	Dst IP	Victim Protection	Yes	Yes
Land attack	SrcIP = DstIP			Yes	Yes
Echo/CharGen Scan	UDP Echo Port and CharGen Port			Yes	Yes
Echo Scan	UDP Dst Port = Echo(7)	Src IP	Scan	Yes	Yes
CharGen Scan	UDP Dst Port = CharGen(19)	Src IP	Scan	Yes	Yes
X'mas Tree Scan	TCP Flag: X'mas	Src IP	Scan	Yes	Yes
IMAP SYN/FIN Scan	TCP Flag: SYN/ FIN DstPort: IMAP(143) SrcPort: 0 or 65535	Src IP	Scan	Yes	Yes
SYN/FIN/RST/ACK Scan	TCP, No Existing session And Scan Hosts more than five.	Src IP	Scan	Yes	Yes
Net Bus Scan	TCP No Existing session DstPort = Net Bus 12345,12346, 3456	SrcIP	Scan	Yes	Yes
Back Orifice Scan	UDP, DstPort = Orifice Port (31337)	SrcIP	Scan	Yes	Yes
SYN Flood	Max TCP Open Handshaking Count (Default 100 c/sec)				Yes

Table 2: Hacker attack types recognized by the IDS

ICMP Flood	Max ICMP Count (Default 100 c/ sec)		Yes
ICMP Echo	Max PING Count (Default 15 c/sec)		Yes

Src IP: Source IP Src Port: Source Port Dst Port: Destination Port Dst IP: Destination IP